Contents

Introduction	3
Classification part 14	ŀ
Household composition, age and sex4	ŀ
Employment9)
Tenure15	5
Internet usage16	3
Politics17	7
Monarchy 120)
Funding of social care20)
Scales21	l
Nuffield Trust & King's Fund25	; ;
DWP)
ISSP)
DLUHC	}
Unfunded69)
Attitudes to private/state schools69)
Zero hours contracts and employment rights69)
Taxes and government spending70)
Assisted dying72	2
Tobacco and cannabis73	}
Poverty, inequality, and cost of living74	ł
European Union76	5
Immigration78	}
Foreign policy and defence79)
Climate change and housing80	
Prejudice and equalities82	2
	1

Voting and political system	83
General Election vote	86
Monarchy 2	87
Classification part 2	88
National identity 1	88
Religion	88
National identity 2 and ethnicity	90
Disability	92
Education	93
Benefits and income	94
Incentive	100
Closing statement – ALL VERSIONS	

Introduction

ASK ALL (All Versions) Repeat BSA 2021

[Intro1]

{IF TEL: INTERVIEWER READ OUT:} Welcome to the BSA 2024 survey.

We would like to ask for your views on some current topics about life in Britain today.

Even if you do not feel sure, we still value your opinion, but please answer as honestly as you can. Once you have finished the survey, we'll send you a **£10** Love2Shop voucher as a thank you for your time.

The survey should take you around 30 minutes to complete, but this may be a little longer or shorter depending on your circumstances.

{IF WEB: You don't have to complete the whole survey in one go – any progress you make will be saved and you can start where you left off when you next log in.

To get started, simply click the 'Next' button below.}

DISPLAY

ASK ALL (All Versions) [IntroDK]

'Before we start, we'd like to remind you that you do not have to answer any question you do not want to.

If we ask a question you don't know the answer to, or you would prefer not to answer, {IF WEB 'simply leave the question blank and click the 'Next' button to make the options 'Don't know' and 'Prefer not to say' appear.'; IF TEL 'just say so and I will record that as your answer.'}

ASK ALL (All Versions)

[INTRO2] The first set of questions are about you and your household.

ASK ALL (All Versions) [PINTRO]

Firstly, I would like to start by asking some questions about you.

1. continue

Classification part 1

Household composition, age and sex

ASK ALL (All Versions) REPEAT BSA 21

[RspSx21]

What is your sex?

A question about gender identity will follow this question.

G_NoReadOut_II1 "Interviewer do not read out instructions 1" _WEB:"" _TEL:"INTERVIEWER: DO NOT READ OUT"

1 Female

2 Male

[Programmer: no DK or Refusal but question is skippable without offering an answer]

ASK IF no answer given at RspSx21 UPDATED BSA 2022 [Wyak]

{If Tel: Before we move on to our next question, I just wanted to provide some explanation about/as to why we ask this. We ask this question on sex to make sure our study is representative of the population. To do this we use population estimates, such as those from the Census, so we ask questions on sex and gender in a similar way to the 2021 Census for this reason.

This information can also help our data users such as charities, organisations, and local and central government to understand differences in opinions.

If you are considering how to answer, use the sex recorded on your birth certificate or Gender Recognition Certificate or passport.

A voluntary question on gender identity will follow this question. This asks if the gender you identify with is different from your sex registered at birth. If it is different, you can then record your gender identity.}

{If web: We ask this question on sex to make sure our study is representative of the population. To do this we use population estimates such as those from the Census, so we ask questions on sex and gender in a similar way to the 2021 Census for this reason.

This information can also help our data users such as charities, organisations, and local and central government to understand differences in opinions.

If you are considering how to answer, use the sex recorded on your birth certificate or Gender Recognition Certificate.

A voluntary question on gender identity will follow this question. This asks if the gender you identify with is different from your sex registered at birth. If it is different, you can then record your gender identity.}

Would you be willing to share this information with us?

1 Yes

2 No

[Programmer: no DK or refusal options should appear on attempt to skip]

ASK IF Whyak=1 (All Versions) REPEAT 2021 [Sx212]

What is your sex?

A question about gender identity will follow this question.

- 1 Female
- 2 Male

G_NoReadOut_II1 "Interviewer do not read out instructions 1" _WEB:"" TEL:"INTERVIEWER: DO NOT READ OUT"

[programmer: no DK or Refusal option, respondents should be allowed to skip the question without providing an answer.]

ASK ALL (All Versions) REPEAT BSA 21

[RspGndrpage]

Is the gender you identify with the same as your sex registered at birth?

G_NoReadOut_II1 "Interviewer do not read out instructions 1" _WEB:""

TEL:"INTERVIEWER: DO NOT READ OUT"

{IF TEL: INTERVIEWER, IF ANSWER IS NO PLEASE DO NOT PROBE, ONLY ENTER INFORMATION OFFERED BY RESPONDENT, THIS IS OPTIONAL}

This question is voluntary.

1 Yes 2 No

[programmer: no DK or Refusal option, respondents should be allowed to skip the

question without providing an answer.]

Enter gender identity [Optional free text]

For more information on why we are collecting this, please follow this *link*, this link will open a new page

ASK ALL (All Versions)

[Sexualit]

Which of the following best describes your sexual orientation?

G_ReadOut_II1

- 1 Straight or Heterosexual
- 2 Gay or Lesbian
- 3 Bisexual
- 4 Pansexual
- 5 Asexual
- 6 Queer
- 7 Other sexual orientation (Please specify)

ASK ALL (All Versions) REPEAT BSA 21 [RespAge]

What was your age at your last birthday?

Range: 0 ... 123

998 (Don't know)999 (Prefer not to answer)

ASK IF RespAge <16 (All Versions) REPEAT BSA 21

[RespAgeChk]

Unfortunately, we cannot interview anyone who is under the age of 16. If there is another member of the household who is aged 16 or over, they will be able to complete the survey.

[SCREEN OUT]

ASK IF Respage = 998 or 999 ('DON'T KNOW' OR 'REFUSAL' AT [RESPAGE]) (All Versions) UPDATED BSA 22

[Ragebnd]

Knowing your age would really help us with our analysis.

Which of the following age groups best applies?

G_ReadOut_II1 "Read out instructions 1" _WEB: "" _TEL: "INTERVIEWER: READ OUT"

Under 16
16-17
18-24
25-34
35-44
45-54
55-59
60-64
65-69
70 or over
(Don't know)
(Prefer not to answer)

ASK IF Ragebnd <16 (All Versions)

[RespAgeChk]

Unfortunately, we cannot interview anyone who is under the age of 16. If there is another member of the household who is aged 16 or over, they will be able to complete the survey.

[SCREEN OUT]

ASK ALL (All Versions) REPEAT BSA 21

[HhlAd]

Thinking now of everyone living in your household...

Including yourself, how many adults aged 16 or over live there regularly as members of the household?

RANGE 1...15 (Don't know) 998 999 (Prefer not to answer)

ASK ALL (ALL VERSIONS) REPEAT BSA 21

[HhlChl]

Still thinking of your household, how many children under age 16 live there regularly as members of the household?

RANGE 0...15

{If HhIChI > 0} [ChildHHAge] [NUMERIC GRID] And how many of the children under age 16 that live with you are ...?

G ReadOut II1 "Read out instructions 1" WEB: "PLEASE ENTER ONE ANSWER ON EVERY ROW" TEL: "INTERVIEWER: READ OUT EACH OPTION AND ENTER ONE ANSWER ON EVERY ROW"

G_GridRange_II1

GRID ROWS

- Aged 4 or under 1
- 2 Aged 5 – 8
- 3 Aged 9 - 12
- 4 Aged 13 - 15

GRID COLUMNS

Numeric boxes [RANGE 0-10]

PROGRAMMING: At least 1 box should be GT 0

ASK ALL (ALL VERSIONS) REPEAT BSA 21 [MarStat6]

Which of these applies to you at present?

Please choose the first which applies

G_ReadOut_II1 "Read out instructions 1" _WEB: "" _TEL: "INTERVIEWER: READ OUT"

- 1 Married
- 2 In a registered civil partnership
- 3 Living with a partner
- 4 Separated (after being married or in a civil partnership)
- 5 Divorced/dissolved civil partnership

- 6 Widowed/surviving partner from a civil partnership
- 7 Single (never married/never in a civil partnership)
- 8 (Don't know)
- 9 (Prefer not to answer)

ASK IF MARSTAT= 3 'LIVING WITH A PARTNER' (ALL VERSIONS) REPEAT BSA 21

[LegStat3]

And what is your legal marital status?

G_ReadOut_II1 "Read out instructions 1" _WEB: "" _TEL: "INTERVIEWER: READ OUT"

1	Married
2	In a registered civil partnership
3	Separated (after being married or in a civil partnership)
4	Divorced/dissolved civil partnership
5	Widowed/surviving partner from a civil partnership
6	Single (never married/never in civil partnership)
7	Other (please say what)
8	SPONTANEOUS (Don't know)
9	SPONTANEOUS (Prefer not to answer)

Employment

ASK ALL (ALL VERSIONS) REPEAT BSA 2021 [REconFW]

Which of the following descriptions applied to what you were doing last week, that is the seven days ending last Sunday?

G_Multi_II1 "Multicode instructions 1"

WEB: "Please select all that apply" TEL: "INTERVIEWER: READ OUT EACH OPTION AND CODE ALL THAT APPLY"

SUBHEAD: Education or training

In full-time education (not paid for by employer, including on vacation)
 On government training or employment programme

SUBHEAD: Employed

- 3 In paid work (or away temporarily) for at least 10 hours in the week
- 4 On Maternity or Paternity leave

SUBHEAD: Not working

- 5 Waiting to take up paid work, already accepted
- 6 Unemployed
- 7 Permanently sick or disabled
- 8 Wholly retired from work
- 9 Looking after the home
- 10 Doing something else (please say what)
- 98 SPONTANEOUS (Don't know)
- 99 SPONTANEOUS (Prefer not to answer)

ASK IF REconFW = 3 or 99 (VERSIONS 1-12) [WRKHRS]

How many hours, on average, do you usually work for pay in a normal week, including overtime?

If you work for more than one employer, or if you are both employed and selfemployed, please count the total number of working hours that you do.

If you temporarily are not working because of temporary illness/parental leave/vacation/strike etc., please refer to your normal work situation.

Please type in:

On average, I work [OPEN NUMERIC BOX] hours a week, overtime included.

ASK ALL (ALL VERSIONS) REPEAT BSA 21 [EMPSTAT]

The following questions refer to your current main job, or if you are not working now to your last main job.

In your main job are you (were you)...

G_ReadOut_II1 "Read out instructions 1" _WEB: "" _TEL: "INTERVIEWER: READ OUT"

1 An employee

- 2 Self-employed with employees
- 3 Self-employed / freelance without employees
- 4 I have never had a job
- 8 SPONTANEOUS (Don't know)
- 9 SPONTANEOUS (Prefer not to answer)

ASK IF 'EMPLOYEE' OR 'SELF-EMPLOYED WITH EMPLOYEES' AT [EMPSTAT] (ALL VERSIONS) REPEAT BSA 21 [Employ]

IF EMPSTAT=1: How many people work (worked) for your employer at the place where you work (worked)?

IF EMPSTAT=2: How many people do (did) you employ?

G_ReadOut_II1 "Read out instructions 1" _WEB: "" TEL: "INTERVIEWER: READ OUT"

1	1 to 24
2	25 to 499
3	500 or more
8	(Don't know)
9	(Prefer not to answer)

ASK IF 'EMPLOYEE' OR 'SELF-EMPLOYED WITH EMPLOYEES' AT [EMPSTAT] (ALL VERSIONS) REPEAT BSA 21

[Superv]

In your job, do (did) you have any formal responsibility for supervising the work of other employees or people?

A supervisor or foreman is responsible for overseeing the work of other employees on a day-to-day basis.

- 1 Yes
- 2 No
- 8 SPONTAENOUS (Don't know)
- 9 SPONTANEOUS (Prefer not to answer)

ASK IF SUPERV = 1 OR 9 (VERSIONS 1-2, 7) [NSUP]

How many other employees do/did you supervise?

Please type in:

[OPEN NUMERIC BOX] employees.

ASK IF 'EMPLOYEE' OR 'SELF-EMPLOYED' OR 'SELF-EMPLOYED WITH EMPLOYEES' AT [EMPSTAT], OR EMPSTAT=9 (VERSIONS 1-2, 7)

[TYPORG1]

Do/did you work for a for-profit organisation or for a non-profit organisation?

IF WEB: Helplink: For-profit organisations are organisations or businesses which aim to make a profit. For example, supermarkets, hospitality, airlines, retail and construction companies.

IF WEB: Helplink: Non-profit organisations are organisations that aim to provide a service or help people and where making a profit is not the main goal. For example, charities, state schools, hospitals, scientific, political or environmental organisations.

IF CATI: IF ASKED: If you work for more than one employer, or if you are both employed and self-employed, please refer to your main job.

IF CATI: IF ASKED: If you are retired or not currently working, please refer to your last main job.

- 1 I work/ed for a for-profit organisation
- 2 I work/ed for a non-profit organisation

ASK IF 'EMPLOYEE' OR 'SELF-EMPLOYED' OR 'SELF-EMPLOYED WITH EMPLOYEES' AT [EMPSTAT], OR EMPSTAT=9 (VERSIONS 1-2, 7) [TYPORG2]

Do/did you work for a public or a private sector organisation?

IF WEB: Helplink: Public sector organisations are owned by the state and provide services or maintain public welfare. For example government, army, police, teachers, doctors and nurses.

IF WEB: Helplink: Private sector organisations are owned by individuals and shareholders and where the main aim is to generate profit. For example supermarkets, hospitality, retail, financial services and legal.

IF CATI: IF ASKED: Public sector organisations are owned by the state and provide services or maintain public welfare. For example government, army, police, teachers, doctors and nurses.

IF CATI: IF ASKED: Private sector organisations are owned by individuals and shareholders and where the main aim is to generate profit. For example supermarkets, hospitality, retail, financial services and legal.

IF WEB: If you work for more than one employer, or if you are both employed and selfemployed, please refer to your main job. If you are retired or not currently working, please refer to your last main job.

IF CATI: IF ASKED: If you work for more than one employer, or if you are both employed and self-employed, please refer to your main job.

IF CATI: If you are retired or not currently working, please refer to your last main job.

- 1 Public sector
- 2 Private sector

ASK IF 'EMPLOYEE' OR 'SELF-EMPLOYED' OR 'SELF-EMPLOYED WITH EMPLOYEES' AT [EMPSTAT] (ALL VERSIONS) REPEAT BSA 21 [EmpOCC]

Which of the following best describes the sort of work you do in your current job? If you are not working now, please select which best describes what you did in your last job

INTERVIEWER: READ OUT OPTIONS AND REFER TO HELP SCREENS FOR EXAMPLES AS NECESSARY OR IF RESPONDENT PROVIDES JOB TITLE.

G_ReadOut_II1 "Read out instructions 1" _WEB: "" _TEL: "INTERVIEWER:"

- 1 Modern professional occupations [HELP SMALL IN GREEN TEXT] for examples click here: teacher/lecturer, nurse, physiotherapist, social worker, welfare officer, artist, musician, police officer (sergeant or above), software designer.
- 2 Clerical and intermediate occupations [HELP SMALL IN GREEN TEXT] for examples click here: secretary, personal assistant, clerical worker, office clerk, call centre agent, nursing auxiliary, nursery nurse.
- 3 Senior managers and administrators usually responsible for planning, organising and co-ordinating work and for finance [HELP SMALL IN GREEN TEXT] for examples click here: finance manager, chief executive.
- 4 Technical and craft occupations such as: motor mechanic, fitter, inspector, plumber, printer, tool maker, electrician, gardener, train driver
- 5 Semi-routine manual and service occupations [HELP SMALL IN GREEN TEXT] for examples click here: postal worker, machine operative, security guard, caretaker, farm worker, catering assistant, receptionist, sales assistant.
- 6 Routine manual and service occupations [HELP SMALL IN GREEN TEXT] for examples click here: HGV driver, van driver, cleaner, porter, packer, sewing machinist, messenger, labourer, waiter / waitress, bar staff.
- 7 Middle or junior managers [HELP SMALL IN GREEN TEXT] for examples click here: office manager, retail manager, bank manager, restaurant manager,

warehouse manager, publican.

- 8 Traditional professional occupations [HELP SMALL IN GREEN TEXT] for examples click here: accountant, solicitor, medical practitioner, scientist, civil/mechanical engineer.
- 98 SPONTANEOUS (Don't know)
- 99 SPONTANEOUS (Prefer not to answer)

ASK ALL (VERSIONS-1-2, 7)

[UnionSA]

"Are you currently a member of a trade union or staff association?"

{WEB: Please select the first answer that applies}

{TEL: "INTERVIEWER: Please read out and code the first option that applies"}

- 1 Yes, trade union
- 2 Yes, staff association
- 3 No

{ASK IF UnionSA = 3 or DK} (VERSIONS 1-2, 7)

[TUSAEver]

"Have you ever been a member of a trade union or staff association?"

{WEB: Please select the first answer that applies}

{TEL: "INTERVIEWER: Please read out and code the first option that applies"}

- 1 Yes, trade union
- 2 Yes, staff association
- 3 No

ASK ALL (VERSIONS 1-2, 7) [TOPBOT]

"In our society there are groups which tend to be towards the top and groups which tend to be towards the bottom.

{IF WEB: "Below is a scale that runs from top to bottom.

Where would you put yourself now on this scale?"; IF CATI: "On a scale of 1 to 10, where groups at the top are a 10 and groups at the bottom are a 1, where would you put yourself?"}

1 10 - Top

2	9
3	8
4	7
5	6
6	5
7	4
8	3
9	2
10	1 - Bottom

Tenure

ASK ALL (ALL VERSIONS) NEW BSA 2022

[TenHhl]

Does your **household** own or rent the main accommodation where you live? If you don't currently rent or own, does the person or people you live with own or rent the accommodation?

TEL: INTERVIEWER: PROBE IF NECESSARY: IF OWNS: Outright or on a mortgage? IF RENTS: From whom?

SUBHEAD: Own

1	Own outright
2	Buying on mortgage
3	Shared ownership (e.g. part rent, part buy)

SUBHEAD: Rent

4	From a local authority or council
5	From a Housing Association/charitable trust/new town development corporation
6	From a property company
7	From an employer of a household member
8	From another organisation
9	From a relative or friend (before living here) of a household member
10	From another individual or private landlord
SUBHEAD: Other	

SUBHEAD: Other

- 11 Rent free or squatting
- 12 Other (please say what)
- 98 SPONTANEOUS (Don't know)
- 99 SPONTAENOUS 1(Prefer not to answer)

ASK ALL (VERSIONS 1-2, 7) [ISSP_UrbRur]

Can I just check, would you describe the place where you live as ... READ OUT ...

- 1 ...a big city,
- 2 the suburbs or outskirts of a big city,
- 3 a small city or town,
- 4 a **country** village,
- 5 or, a farm or home in the country?
- 7 (Other answer (WRITE IN))
- 8 (Don't know)
- 9 (Refusal)

ASK IF TELEPHONE INTERVIEW (ALL VERSIONS) REPEAT BSA 21 [Internt]

Does anyone have access to the internet from this address?

- 1 Yes
- 2 No
- 8 SPONTAENOUS (Don't know)
- 9 SPONTAENOUS (Prefer not to answer)

ASK IF TELELEPHONE INTERVIEW (ALL VERSIONS) REPEAT BSA 21 [IntPers]

Do you *personally* have access to the internet, either at home, at work, or elsewhere, or on a smartphone, tablet or other mobile device?

- 1 Yes
- 2 No
- 8 SPONTAENOUS (Don't know)
 - 9 SPONTAENOUS (Prefer not to answer)

Internet usage

ASK ALL (ALL VERSIONS) REPEAT BSA 21 [IntFreq]

On average, how often would you say you access the internet for personal use? {WEB: "This could be for general web browsing, watching videos or going on social media sites.

Please include time spent on the internet on all devices you use, for example a computer, laptop, tablet or smartphone."}

IF TEL INTERVIEWER: "This could be for general web browsing, watching videos or going on social media sites.

Please include time spent on the internet on all devices you use, for example a computer, laptop, tablet or smartphone.

G_ReadOut_II1 "Read out instructions 1" _WEB: "" TEL: "INTERVIEWER: READ OUT"

- 1 Several times a day
- 2 Daily or almost every day
- 3 At least weekly but not daily
- 4 Less than weekly
- 5 Did not use in the last three months
- 6 IF TEL: Do not have access to the internet

Politics

ASK ALL (ALL VERSIONS) REPEAT BSA 2021 [IntroPol]

We would now like to ask some questions about politics.

ASK ALL (ALL VERSIONS) REPEAT 2021

[SupParty]

Generally speaking, do you think of yourself as a supporter of any one political party?

- 1 Yes
- 2 No
- 8 SPONTANEOUS (Don't know)
- 9 SPONTANEOUS (Prefer not to answer)

ASK IF 'NO' OR 'DON'T KNOW' OR 'PREFER NOT TO ANSWER' AT [SUPPARTY] (ALL VERSIONS) REPEAT 2021

[ClosePty]

Do you think of yourself as a little closer to one political party than to the others?

- Yes 1
- 2 No
- (Don't know) 8
- 9 (Prefer not to answer)

ASK IF 'YES' AT SUPPARTY, OR 'YES', 'NO' OR 'DON'T KNOW' AT [CLOSEPTY] (ALL VERSIONS) REPEAT 2021 [PARTYFW]

"{IF 'SupParty=1 OR ClosePty=1: "which one of the following?"}

{IF ClosePty=2 or DK: "if there was a general election tomorrow, which political party do you think you would most be likely to support?}

G_ReadOut_II1 "Read out instructions 1" _WEB: "" _TEL: "INTERVIEWER: READ OUT"

1	Conservative
2	Labour
3	Liberal Democrat
4	Scottish National Party
5	Plaid Cymru
6	Green Party
7	UK Independence Party (UKIP)
8	Reform UK (previously known as Brexit party)
9	Democratic Unionist Party (DUP)
10	Sinn Féin
11	Social Democratic & Labour Party (SDLP)
12	Alliance Party
13	Ulster Unionist Party (UUP)
14	Traditional Unionist Voice (TUV)
15	Other party (please say what)
16	None
98	SPONTANEOUS (Don't know)

99 SPONTANEOUS (Prefer not to answer)

ASK ALL (All Versions) [EURefV2]

There was a referendum in 2016 on whether the UK should remain a member of the European Union or leave the European Union. Talking to people about the referendum, we have found that a lot of people didn't manage to vote.

Did you manage to vote in the referendum about the European Union?

- 1 Yes
- 2 No
- 3 I was not eligible to vote, or too young
- 4 (I don't remember)
- 9 (Prefer not to answer)

{ASK IF EURefV2 = 1} (All Versions) [EURefVote]

"In the referendum, you were asked: 'Should the United Kingdom remain a member of the European Union or leave the European Union?'.

Did you vote to 'remain a member of the EU' or to 'leave the EU'?"

- 1 Remain a member of the European Union
- 2 Leave the European Union
- 3 (I don't remember)
- 9 (Prefer not to answer)

ASK ALL (ALL VERSIONS) REPEAT BSA 21

[Politics]

{FLIPSCALES 1-5}

How much interest do you generally have in what is going on in politics?

G_ReadOut_II1 "Read out instructions 1"

_WEB: ""

- _TEL: "INTERVIEWER: READ OUT"
- 1 A great deal
- 2 Quite a lot
- 3 Some
- 4 Not very much
- 5 None at all
- 8 SPONTANEOUS (Don't know)
- 9 SPONTANEOUS (Prefer not to answer)

ASK ALL (All Versions)

[TaxSpend]

Suppose the government had to choose between the following three options.

Which do you think it should choose?

G_ReadOut_II1 "Read out instructions 1" _WEB: ""

_TEL: "INTERVIEWER: READ OUT"

- 1 Reduce taxes and spend **less** on health, education and social benefits
- 2 Keep taxes and spending on these services at the **same** level as now
- 3 Increase taxes and spend more on health, education and social benefits
- 4 (None)
- 8 (Don't know)
- 9 (Refusal)

Monarchy 1

(ASK IF VERSION 5-6)

[Monarchy]

How important or unimportant do you think it is for Britain to continue to have a monarchy?

G_ReadOut_II1 "Read out instructions 1" _WEB: "" _TEL: "INTERVIEWER: READ OUT"

- 1 Very important
- 2 Quite important
- 3 Not very important
- 4 Not at all important
- 5 {IF TEL: or, do you think} The monarchy should be abolished
- 8 (Don't know)
- 9 (Prefer not to answer)

Funding of social care

(ASK IF VERSION 5-6) [CareIntr] And now for some questions on a range of different topics. At some point in their lives people can need help looking after themselves because of illness, disability or old age. This can include help with things like getting washed, dressed, and preparing meals, or care in a nursing home.

(ASK IF VERSION 5-6)

[CarePa2] (2017)

Who do you think should pay for this social care?

G_ReadOut_II1 "Read out instructions 1" _WEB: "" _TEL: "INTERVIEWER: READ OUT"

- 1 "The government" / "The Scottish government" / "The Welsh government"
- 2 The individual
- 3 The individual should pay what they can and "the government" / "the Scottish government" / "the Welsh government" should pay the rest
- 4 The individual should pay what they can up to a capped amount and "the government" / "the Scottish government" / "the Welsh government" should pay the rest
- 8 SPONTANEOUS (Don't know)
- 9 SPONTANEOUS (Refusal)

Scales

ASK ALL (ALL VERSIONS) REPEAT 2021

[Welfare]

{FLIPSCALES 1-5}

Please select one option for each of the following statements to show how much you agree or disagree with it.

G_Grid_II1 "Grid instructions 1" _WEB: "Please select one answer on every row" _TEL: "INTERVIEWER: READ OUT EACH STATEMENT AND THE ANSWER CODES. REPEAT ANSWER CODES AS REQUIRED."

Please select one answer on every row.

GRID ROWS [COLLAPSIBLE GRID]:

- 1 Around here, most unemployed people could find a job if they really wanted one
- 2 Many people who get social security don't really deserve any help

- 3 Most people on the dole are fiddling in one way or another
- 4 If welfare benefits weren't so generous, people would learn to stand on their own two feet

GRID COLUMNS:

- 1 Agree strongly
- 2 Agree
- 3 Neither agree nor disagree
- 4 Disagree
- 5 Disagree strongly
- 8 (Don't know)
- 9 (Prefer not to answer)

VARNAME1: UnempJob VARNAME2: SocHelp VARNAME3: DoleFidl VARNAME4: WelfFeet

ASK ALL (ALL VERSIONS) REPEAT 2021 [Welfare2]

{FLIPSCALES 1-5}

And on the same subject, please select one option for each of the following statements to show how much you agree or disagree with it.

G_Grid_II1 "Grid instructions 1"

_WEB: "Please select one answer on every row" _TEL: "INTERVIEWER: READ OUT EACH STATEMENT AND THE ANSWER

CODES. REPEAT ANSWER CODES AS REQUIRED."

GRID ROWS [COLLAPSIBLE GRID]:

- 1 The welfare state encourages people to stop helping each other
- 2 The government should spend more money on welfare benefits for the poor, even if it leads to higher taxes
- 3 Cutting welfare benefits would damage too many people's lives
- 4 The creation of the welfare state is one of Britain's proudest achievements

GRID COLUMNS:

- 1 Agree strongly
- 2 Agree
- 3 Neither agree nor disagree
- 4 Disagree
- 5 Disagree strongly
- 8 (Don't know)
- 9 (Prefer not to answer)

VARNAME1: Welfhelp VARNAME2: morewelf VARNAME3: damlives VARNAME4: proudwlf

ASK ALL (ALL VERSIONS) REPEAT 2021 [LeftRight]

{FLIPSCALES 1-5}

Please select one option for each of the following statements to show how much you agree or disagree with it.

G_Grid_II1 "Grid instructions 1"

_WEB: "Please select one answer on every row" _TEL: "INTERVIEWER: READ OUT EACH STATEMENT AND THE ANSWER CODES. REPEAT ANSWER CODES AS REQUIRED."

GRID ROWS [COLLAPSIBLE GRID]:

- 1 Government should redistribute income from the better-off to those who are less well off
- 2 Big business benefits owners at the expense of workers
- 3 Ordinary working people do not get their fair share of the nation's wealth
- 4 There is one law for the rich and one for the poor
- 5 Management will always try to get the better of employees if it gets the chance

GRID COLUMNS:

- 1 Agree strongly
- 2 Agree
- 3 Neither agree nor disagree
- 4 Disagree
- 5 Disagree strongly
- 8 (Don't know)
- 9 (Prefer not to answer)

VARNAME1: Redistrb VARNAME2: BigBusnN VARNAME3: Wealth VARNAME4: RichLaw VARNAME5: Indust4

ASK ALL (ALL VERSIONS) REPEAT 2021

[LibAuth]

{FLIPSCALES 1-5}

Please select one option for each of the following statements to show how much you agree or disagree with it.

G_Grid_II1 "Grid instructions 1"

_WEB: "Please select one answer on every row"

_TEL: "INTERVIEWER: READ OUT EACH STATEMENT AND THE ANSWER CODES. REPEAT ANSWER CODES AS REQUIRED."

GRID ROWS [COLLAPSIBLE GRID]:

- 1 Young people today don't have enough respect for traditional British values
- 2 People who break the law should be given stiffer sentences
- 3 For some crimes, the death penalty is the most appropriate sentence
- 4 Schools should teach children to obey authority
- 5 The law should always be obeyed, even if a particular law is wrong
- 6 Censorship of films and magazines is necessary to uphold moral standards

GRID COLUMNS:

- 1 Agree strongly
- 2 Agree
- 3 Neither agree nor disagree
- 4 Disagree
- 5 Disagree strongly
- 8 (Don't know)
- 9 (Prefer not to answer)

VARNAME1: TradVals VARNAME2: StifSent VARNAME3: DeathApp VARNAME4: Obey VARNAME5: Wronglaw VARNAME6: Censor

Nuffield Trust & King's Fund

{ASK IF VERSION 2-6, 8}

[HSCIntro] Now for some questions on health and social care.

{ASK IF VERSION 2-6, 8}

[NHSSat] All in all, how satisfied or dissatisfied would you say you are with the way in which the National Health Service runs nowadays?

{FLIPSCALE 1-5}

G_ReadOut_II1 "Read out instructions 1" _WEB: "" TEL: "INTERVIEWER: READ OUT"

- 1 Very satisfied
- 2 Quite satisfied
- 3 Neither satisfied nor dissatisfied
- 4 Quite dissatisfied
- 5 Very dissatisfied
- 8 SPONTANEOUS (Don't know)
- 9 SPONTANEOUS (Prefer not to answer)

{ASK IF VERSION 3, 8}

[NHSSatSp] From what you have seen or heard, how satisfied or dissatisfied would you say you are with each of the following aspects of the NHS nowadays?

{RANDOMISE GRID ROWS 1-5} {RANDOMISE GRID COLS 1-5}

_WEB: "Please select one answer on every row" _TEL: "INTERVIEWER: READ OUT EACH OPTION AND THE ANSWER CODES. REPEAT ANSWER CODES AS REQUIRED."

GRID ROWS [COLLAPSIBLE GRID]:

- 1 The quality of care provided by the NHS
- 2 The range of treatments and services available on the NHS
- 3 The length of time it takes to get an appointment at a GP practice
- 4 The length of time it takes to get hospital care
- 5 The length of time it takes for someone to be seen in Accident and Emergency (A&E)

GRID COLUMNS:

- 1 Very satisfied
- 2 Quite satisfied
- 3 Neither satisfied nor dissatisfied
- 4 Quite dissatisfied
- 5 Very dissatisfied
- 8 SPONTANEOUS (Don't know)
- 9 SPONTANEOUS (Prefer not to answer)

{ASK IF VERSION 3, 8}

[PatComm] To what extent do you agree or disagree with the following statement?

'The NHS does a good job at communicating with patients about things like appointments and test results'

G_ReadOut_II1 "Read out instructions 1" _WEB: "" TEL: "INTERVIEWER: READ OUT"

- 1 Strongly agree
- 2 Agree
- 3 Neither agree nor disagree
- 4 Disagree
- 5 Strongly disagree
- 8 (Don't know)
- 9 (Prefer not to answer)

{ASK IF VERSION 3, 8}

[EffSpend]

To what extent do you agree or disagree with the following statement?

'The NHS spends the money it has efficiently'

G_ReadOut_II1 "Read out instructions 1" _WEB: "" TEL: "INTERVIEWER: READ OUT"

- 1 Strongly agree
- 2 Agree
- 3 Neither agree nor disagree
- 4 Disagree

- 5 Strongly disagree
- 8 (Don't know)
- 9 (Prefer not to answer)

{ASK IF VERSION 3, 8}

[StafLvAP]

To what extent do you agree or disagree with the following statement?

'There are enough staff in the NHS these days'

G_ReadOut_II1 "Read out instructions 1" _WEB: "" TEL: "INTERVIEWER: READ OUT"

- 1 Strongly agree
- 2 Agree
- 3 Neither agree nor disagree
- 4 Disagree
- 5 Strongly disagree
- 8 (Don't know)
- 9 (Prefer not to answer)

{ASK IF VERSION 3, 8}

[GPSat]

From your own experience, **or from what you have heard**, please say how satisfied or dissatisfied you are with the way in which each of these parts of the National Health Service runs nowadays:

First, local doctors or GP services?

G_ReadOut_II1 "Read out instructions 1" _WEB: "" TEL: "INTERVIEWER: READ OUT"

{FLIPSCALE 1-5}

- 1 Very satisfied
- 2 Quite satisfied
- 3 Neither satisfied nor dissatisfied
- 4 Quite dissatisfied
- 5 Very dissatisfied
- 8 SPONTANEOUS (Don't know)
- 9 SPONTANEOUS (Prefer not to answer)

{ASK IF VERSION 3, 8}

[DentSat] (And how satisfied or dissatisfied are you with the NHS as regards...)

... National Health Service dentists?

G_ReadOut_II1 "Read out instructions 1" WEB: "" TEL: "INTERVIEWER: READ OUT"

{FLIPSCALE 1-5}

- 1 Very satisfied
- 2 Quite satisfied
- Neither satisfied nor dissatisfied 3
- Quite dissatisfied 4
- 5 Very dissatisfied
- SPONTANEOUS (Don't know) 8
- SPONTANEOUS (Prefer not to answer) 9

{ASK IF VERSION 3, 8}

[InOutSat] (And how satisfied or dissatisfied are you with the NHS as regards...)

... being in hospital either as an in-patient or an out-patient?

G_ReadOut_II1 "Read out instructions 1" WEB: "" TEL: "INTERVIEWER: READ OUT"

{FLIPSCALE 1-5}

- 1 Very satisfied
- 2 Quite satisfied
- Neither satisfied nor dissatisfied 3
- Quite dissatisfied 4
- 5 Very dissatisfied
- SPONTANEOUS (Don't know) 8
- 9 SPONTANEOUS (Prefer not to answer)

{ASK IF VERSION 3, 8} [AESat]

From your own experience, or from what you have heard, please say how satisfied or

dissatisfied you are with...

...Accident and Emergency departments?

G_ReadOut_II1 "Read out instructions 1" _WEB: "" TEL: "INTERVIEWER: READ OUT"

{FLIPSCALE 1-5}

- 1 Very satisfied
- 2 Quite satisfied
- 3 Neither satisfied nor dissatisfied
- 4 Quite dissatisfied
- 5 Very dissatisfied
- 8 SPONTANEOUS (Don't know)
- 9 SPONTANEOUS (Prefer not to answer)

{ASK IF VERSION 2-6, 8} [CareSat3]

The next question is about social care. By social care, we mean the support given to people who need help looking after themselves because of things like illness, disability, or old age.

From your own experience, **or from what you have heard**, how satisfied or dissatisfied are you with social care these days?

G_ReadOut_II1 "Read out instructions 1" _WEB: "" TEL: "INTERVIEWER: READ OUT"

- 1 Very satisfied
- 2 Quite satisfied
- 3 Neither satisfied nor dissatisfied
- 4 Quite dissatisfied
- 5 Very dissatisfied
- 8 SPONTANEOUS (Don't know)
- 9 SPONTANEOUS (Prefer not to answer)

{ASK IF VERSION 3, 8}

[GvMonNHS]

From what you have seen or heard, would you say that at the moment the government spends too much money on the NHS, too little money, or about the right amount?

G_ReadOut_II1 "Read out instructions 1" _WEB: "" TEL: "INTERVIEWER: READ OUT"

1 Far too much money

- 2 Too much money
- 3 About the right amount of money
- 4 Too little money
- 5 Far too little money
- 8 SPONTANEOUS (Don't know)
- 9 SPONTANEOUS (Prefer not to answer)

{ASK IF VERSION 3, 8}

[NHSTaxSpend]

Suppose the government had to choose between the following three options, which do you think it should choose?

G_ReadOut_II1 "Read out instructions 1" _WEB: "" TEL: "INTERVIEWER: READ OUT"

- 1 Reduce taxes and spend less on the NHS
- 2 **Keep** taxes and spending on the NHS at the **same** level as now
- 3 Increase taxes and spend more on the NHS
- 8 SPONTANEOUS (Don't know)
- 9 SPONTANEOUS (Refusal)

{ASK IF VERSION 3, 8}

[NHSPriority1]

{RANDOMISE OPTIONS 1-7}

Which of the following do you think should be the most important priorities for the NHS?

G_MultiUpTo3_II1 "Multicode up to 3 instructions"

_WEB: "Please select up to three" _TEL: "INTERVIEWER: 'Please select up to three'

INTERVIEWER: READ OUT ALL OPTIONS AND THEN CODE UP TO 3"

- 1 Improving waiting times for planned operations
- 2 Improving waiting times in Accident and Emergency (A&E)
- 3 Making it easier to get a GP appointment
- 4 Improving the health of the most disadvantaged
- 5 Increasing the number of staff in the NHS

- 6 Improving mental health services
- 7 Helping people to stay healthy and preventing illness
- 8 Other (please specify)
- 98 SPONTANEOUS (Don't know)
- 99 SPONTANEOUS (Prefer not to answer)

{ASK IF VERSION 3, 8}

[NHSPrinciples1]

{SCALE FLIP GRID COLUMNS 1-4}

For each of the following statements, please tell me the extent to which you think the principle should still apply to the NHS today.

G_Grid_II1 "Grid instructions 1"

_WEB: "Please select one answer on every row" _TEL: "INTERVIEWER: READ OUT EACH STATEMENT AND THE ANSWER CODES. REPEAT ANSWER CODES AS REQUIRED."

GRID ROWS [COLLAPSIBLE GRID]:

- 1 The NHS should be free of charge when you need to use it
- 2 The NHS should be available to everyone
- 3 The NHS should primarily be funded through taxes

GRID COLUMNS:

- 1 This principle should **definitely** apply to the NHS today
- 2 This principle should **probably** apply to the NHS today
- 3 This principle should **probably not** apply to the NHS today
- 4 This principle should **definitely not** apply to the NHS today
- 8 SPONTANEOUS (Don't know)
- 9 SPONTANEOUS (Prefer not to answer)

Varname1: NHSCharge (2021) Varname2: NHSavail (2021) Varname3: NHStax (2021)

DWP

{ASK IF VERSION 3-8} DWPInt

We would now like to ask some questions about benefits.

{ASK IF VERSION 3-8} CheatPor [FLIP SCALE 1...5]

How much do you agree or disagree with the following statement?

'The reason that some people on benefits cheat the system is that they don't get enough to live on'

G_ReadOut_II1 "Read out instructions 1" _WEB: "" _TEL: "INTERVIEWER: READ OUT"

- 1 Agree strongly
- 2 Agree
- 3 Neither agree nor disagree
- 4 Disagree
- 5 Disagree strongly

{ASK IF VERSION 3-8} FalseBn2 [FLIP SCALE 1...5]

Suppose someone knowingly gave false information to support their benefit claim.

What would your view about this be?

G_ReadOut_II1 "Read out instructions 1" _WEB: "" _TEL: "INTERVIEWER: READ OUT"

- 1 Always wrong
- 2 Usually wrong
- 3 Sometimes wrong
- 4 Rarely wrong
- 5 Never wrong

{ASK IF VERSION 3-8}

Ben3000 [FLIP SCALE 1...4]

Consider this situation: an unemployed person on benefits takes a casual job and is paid in cash. They do not report it to the benefit office and are £3000 in pocket.

Do you feel this is wrong or not wrong?

G_ReadOut_II1 "Read out instructions 1" _WEB: "" _TEL: "INTERVIEWER: READ OUT"

1 Not wrong

2 A little wrong

- 3 Quite wrong
- 4 Seriously wrong

{ASK IF VERSION 3-8} FalCatch [FLIP SCALE 1...4]

How likely do you think is it that someone who falsely claims benefits will be caught?

G_ReadOut_II1 "Read out instructions 1" _WEB: "" _TEL: "INTERVIEWER: READ OUT"

- 1 Very likely
- 2 Fairly likely
- 3 Not very likely
- 4 Not at all likely

{ASK IF VERSION 3-8} BFRecDebt [FLIP SCALE 1...4]

The Department for Work and Pensions (DWP) are responsible for paying the state pension as well as paying benefits, such as job seekers allowance and Universal Credit.

Say that somebody claimed a benefit they weren't entitled to and now owes money to the DWP. Imagine they no longer receive benefits and have repeatedly refused to pay back the money owed voluntarily.

Do you think the DWP should or should not be able to take money directly out of the person's bank account? Note that the DWP would not take this action if it would cause financial hardship for the individual.

G_ReadOut_II1 "Read out instructions 1"

_WEB: "" _TEL: "INTERVIEWER: READ OUT"

- 1 Definitely should
- 2 Probably should
- 3 Probably should not
- 4 Definitely should not
- 5 Not sure

{ASK IF VERSION 3-8} BFPnshNew [MULTICODE] [RANDOMISE: 4...9]

Now thinking about someone who is caught claiming **£5,000** of benefits they are not entitled to. It is the first time they have done this. Which, if any, of the punishments in this list do you think the person should receive?

G_Multi_II1 "Multicode instructions 1"

_WEB: "Please select all that apply"

_TEL: "INTERVIEWER: READ OUT EACH OPTION AND CODE ALL THAT APPLY"

- 1 Stopping their benefit payments
- 2 Reducing their benefit payments
- 3 Paying back the overpayment of benefits
- 4 Prison
- 5 Having their possessions taken away
- 6 Community service
- 7 A fine
- 8 Police caution
- 9 Having their name made public (e.g. in local press)
- 10 No punishment at all [EXCLUSIVE]
- 11 Other (please specify)

{ASK IF VERSION 3-8} CosLivBF [FLIP SCALE]

Would you say that the rise in the cost of living means that nowadays people are more likely to make fraudulent benefit claims, less likely to make fraudulent benefit claims, or does it make no difference?

G_ReadOut_II1 "Read out instructions 1" _WEB: "" _TEL: "INTERVIEWER: READ OUT"

- 1 Much more likely
- 2 Somewhat more likely
- 3 Makes no difference

- 4 Somewhat less likely
- 5 Much less likely

{ASK IF VERSION 3-8} JOBWORK2

Some people on benefits are in work but on low pay. Say they are required by the Jobcentre to come in and discuss ways of getting a better-paid job, but they repeatedly fail to attend an appointment.

What do you think should happen to their benefits? Do you think their benefits should...

G_ReadOut_II1 "Read out instructions 1" _WEB: "" _TEL: "INTERVIEWER: READ OUT"

- 1 <u>Not</u> be affected,
- 2 be reduced a little,
- 3 be reduced a lot,
- 4 or, be stopped?

{ASK IF VERSION 3-8} FinInd [FLIP SCALE]

Imagine a person who receives benefits and is capable of working. How much do you agree or disagree that it is their duty to find a better paid job in order to reduce their reliance on benefits?

G_ReadOut_II1 "Read out instructions 1" _WEB: "" _TEL: "INTERVIEWER: READ OUT"

- 1 Agree strongly
- 2 Agree
- 3 Neither agree nor disagree
- 4 Disagree
- 5 Disagree strongly

{ASK IF VERSION 3-8 – HALF SAMPLE} UBAFW [MULTICODE: RANDOMISE 1...4]

Do you think it would be right to deny benefits to someone who is out of work in any of the following circumstances?

G_Multi_II1 "Multicode instructions 1"

_WEB: "Please select all that apply"

_TEL: "INTERVIEWER: READ OUT EACH OPTION AND CODE ALL THAT APPLY"

- 1 They have never paid much in taxes because they have only ever had a lowpaid job
- 2 They have never paid much in taxes because they were off sick for a year
- 3 They have never paid much in taxes because they were unemployed for a year but were looking for work
- 4 They have not paid much in taxes recently because they gave up work to care for a sick or elderly relative
- 5 Some other reason (please specify)
- 6 None of the above [EXCLUSIVE]
- 7 Can't choose [Exclusive]

{ASK IF VERSION 3-8} JOBWORK3

Imagine a person on benefits has been asked to come to the Jobcentre every week, to talk about ways in which they might find work. Which of these statements comes closest to what you think should happen to their benefits if they stop attending the Jobcentre completely?

G_ReadOut_II1 "Read out instructions 1" _WEB: "" _TEL: "INTERVIEWER: READ OUT"

- 1 Their benefits should not be affected
- 2 Their benefits should be reduced a little
- 3 Their benefits should be reduced a lot
- 4 Their benefits should be stopped

{ASK IF VERSION 3-8} JOBWORK5

Imagine a person who is out of work and on benefits has been asked to come to the Jobcentre every 3 months, to talk about ways in which they might find work. Which of these statements comes closest to what you think should happen to their benefits if they stop attending the Jobcentre completely?

G_ReadOut_II1 "Read out instructions 1" _WEB: "" _TEL: "INTERVIEWER: READ OUT"

- 1 Their benefits should not be affected
- 2 Their benefits should be reduced a little

- 3 Their benefits should be reduced a lot
- 4 Their benefits should be stopped

{ASK IF VERSION 3-8} JOBWORKWK

Nowadays, some unemployed people on benefits are required to visit the Jobcentre every week or every two weeks. How often do you think it is reasonable to expect such people to visit the Jobcentre?

G_ReadOut_II1 "Read out instructions 1" _WEB: "" _TEL: "INTERVIEWER: READ OUT"

- 1 Every week
- 2 Every two weeks
- 3 Every month
- 4 Every few months
- 5 They should not be required to visit the Jobcentre

{ASK IF VERSION 3-8} DWPHon

Do you tend to trust or tend not to trust the DWP to be honest?

G_ReadOut_II1 "Read out instructions 1" _WEB: "" _TEL: "INTERVIEWER: READ OUT"

- 1 Trust it a great deal
- 2 Tend to trust it
- 3 Tend to distrust it
- 4 Distrust it a great deal

{ASK IF VERSION 3-8} DWPQui

Do you tend to trust or tend not to trust the DWP to respond to queries accurately and quickly?

- 1 Trust it a great deal
- 2 Tend to trust it
- 3 Tend to distrust it
- 4 Distrust it a great deal

{ASK IF VERSION 3-8} DWPFai

Do you tend to trust or tend not to trust the DWP to treat people fairly?

G_ReadOut_II1 "Read out instructions 1" _WEB: "" _TEL: "INTERVIEWER: READ OUT"

1 Trust it a great deal

- 2 Tend to trust it
- 3 Tend to distrust it
- 4 Distrust it a great deal

{ASK IF VERSION 3-8} DWPServTrav [GRID: RANDOMISE ROWS]

Say you had to go to your local benefit office or Jobcentre. What would you consider to be the maximum acceptable length of time it should take you to get there by...?

G_Grid_II1 "Grid instructions 1"

_WEB: "Please select one answer on every row" _TEL: "INTERVIEWER: READ OUT EACH STATEMENT AND THE ANSWER

CODES. REPEAT ANSWER CODES AS REQUIRED."

GRID ROWS [COLLAPSIBLE GRID]:

- 1 Public Transport
- 2 Walking
- 3 Car

GRID COLUMNS:

- 1 Less than 15 minutes
- 2 15 minutes to half an hour
- 3 Between 30 minutes and 45 minutes
- 4 45 minutes to an hour
- 5 Greater than 1 hour

Varname1: DWPPubTra Varname2: DWPWalk Varname3: DWPCar

{ASK IF VERSION 3-8} DWPCon [MULTICODE: RANDOMISE (1...10)]

(The Department for Work and Pensions (DWP) are responsible for paying the state pension as well as paying benefits, such as job seekers allowance and Universal Credit)

Imagine you needed to get into contact with the DWP. Which of these would be your preferred ways to do so?

G_Multi_II1 "Multicode instructions 1"

_WEB: "Please select all that apply"

_TEL: "INTERVIEWER: READ OUT EACH OPTION AND CODE ALL THAT APPLY"

Online

- 1 Mobile app
- 2 Webchat
- 3 Via DWP website/DWP online account
- 4 Via a Single Government-wide Portal (for managing pensions and benefits, managing your health and managing tax etc)

Over the phone

- 5 Talking to someone from DWP
- 6 Talking to a 'smartbot' / AI (a computer program that simulates a human conversation)
- 7 Callback (having the option to arrange a call-back for a less busy time, or when you reach the front of the queue)

In person

8 At your local office (e.g. visiting a job centre)

{ASK IF VERSION 3-8 – HALF SAMPLE} GvPriCha [GRID: RANDOMISE ROWS, FLIP SCALE]

Opinions vary on whether government agencies, private companies or charities would be best at helping long-term unemployed people find work, and making sure they are actively seeking work. Please say, for each of the following, who you think would be best at...?

G_Grid_II1 "Grid instructions 1"

_WEB: "Please select one answer on every row" _TEL: "INTERVIEWER: READ OUT EACH STATEMENT AND THE ANSWER CODES. REPEAT ANSWER CODES AS REQUIRED."

GRID ROWS [COLLAPSIBLE GRID]:

- 1 Making sure services go to the people who need them most
- 2 Running services cost-effectively
- 3 Providing a good quality service

GRID COLUMNS:

- 1 Probably government
- 2 Definitely government
- 3 Probably private companies
- 4 Definitely private companies
- 5 Probably charities
- 6 Definitely charities

Varname1: BestGov Varname2: BestPri Varname3: BestCha

{ASK IF VERSION 3-8} SocSpnd2

Now thinking about disability benefits. Would you like to see more or less government spending than now on benefits for disabled people who cannot work?

G_ReadOut_II1 "Read out instructions 1" _WEB: "" _TEL: "INTERVIEWER: READ OUT"

- 1 Spend much more
- 2 Spend more
- 3 Spend the same as now
- 4 Spend less
- 5 Spend much less

{ASK IF VERSION 3-8} Dbreq

Where possible, disabled people must take active measures to find appropriate work, in order to receive disability benefits. Do you think that this requirement is...

- 1 Too weak
- 2 About right

3 Too tough

{ASK IF VERSION 3-8} HitBen01

Some people say that all those who cannot work because of a health problem should receive the same amount of disability benefits. Other people say the amount of disability benefits someone receives should depend on the health problem they have.

First of all, consider someone who cannot work because of a physical health problem, such as chronic back pain, and someone who cannot work because of a mental health problem, such as depression. Do you think...

G_ReadOut_II1 "Read out instructions 1" _WEB: "" _TEL: "INTERVIEWER: READ OUT"

1 ...they should receive the same amount of benefits,

2 ... the person with the physical health problem should receive more,

3 ...or, the person with the mental health problem should receive more?

{ASK IF VERSION 3-8} HItBen02

Now, what about someone who cannot work because of a physical health problem, such as chronic back pain, and someone who cannot work because of a cognitive condition affecting their learning, communication or social interaction, such as autism. Do you think...

G_ReadOut_II1 "Read out instructions 1" _WEB: "" _TEL: "INTERVIEWER: READ OUT"

- 1 ...they should receive the same amount of benefits,
- 2 ... the person with the physical health problem should receive more,
- 3 ... or, the person with the cognitive condition should receive more?

{ASK IF VERSION 3-8} HitBen03

And finally, what about someone who cannot work because of a mental health problem, such as depression, and someone who cannot work because of a cognitive condition affecting their learning, communication or social interaction, such as autism. Do you think...

G_ReadOut_II1 "Read out instructions 1" _WEB: "" _TEL: "INTERVIEWER: READ OUT"

- 1 ... they should receive the same amount of benefits,
- 2 ... the person with the mental health problem should receive more,
- 3 ... or, the person with the cognitive condition should receive more?

{ASK IF VERSION 3-8} DisBenDif [FLIP SCALE]

In general, would you say it is too easy or too difficult for people to be able to claim disability benefits?

IF WEB: HELPLINK: Need clarification? - This question is referring to whether you think the eligibility requirements for claiming disability benefits are too lenient or too strict.

IF CATI: 'IF ASKED: This question is referring to whether you think the eligibility requirements for claiming disability benefits are too lenient or too strict.'

G_ReadOut_II1 "Read out instructions 1" _WEB: "" _TEL: "INTERVIEWER: READ OUT"

- 1 Much too easy
- 2 Somewhat too easy
- 3 Neither too easy nor too difficult
- 4 Somewhat too difficult
- 5 Much too difficult

{ASK IF VERSION 3-8} Dbag [FLIP SCALE]

Should it be easier or harder to claim disability benefits for a child than for an adult, or should it be the same?

- 1 Much easier
- 2 Somewhat easier
- 3 The same

- 4 Somewhat harder
- 5 Much harder

{ASK IF VERSION 3-8} FairRent

In general, do you think that the rent someone has to pay to rent a home from a private landlord in your area is too high, too low or about right?

G_ReadOut_II1 "Read out instructions 1" _WEB: "" _TEL: "INTERVIEWER: READ OUT"

1 Much too high

- 2 Somewhat too high
- 3 About right
- 4 Somewhat too low
- 5 Much too low

{ASK IF VERSION 3-8} DMWelf

Consider a family on a low income who receive welfare benefits to help pay their rent. Their rent increases after work to get rid of severe damp and mould in their home.

What do you think should happen to the family's welfare benefits?

G_ReadOut_II1 "Read out instructions 1" _WEB: "" _TEL: "INTERVIEWER: READ OUT"

- 1 They should be increased to cover all of the cost of the rent rise
- 2 They should be increased to cover some of the cost of the rent rise
- 3 They should not be increased at all and the family should cover the full cost of the rent rise

{ASK IF VERSION 3-8} IDGWelf

And again, thinking about a family on a low income who receive welfare benefits to help pay their rent. Their rent increases after the landlord spends money on insulation and double glazing that should reduce the cost of heating their home.

What do you think should happen to the family's welfare benefits?

G_ReadOut_II1 "Read out instructions 1" _WEB: "" _TEL: "INTERVIEWER: READ OUT"

- 1 They should be increased to cover all of the cost of the rent rise
- 2 They should be increased to cover some of the cost of the rent rise
- 3 They should not be increased at all and the family should cover the full cost of the rent rise

{ASK IF VERSION 3-8} MuchPov

Some people say there is very little **real poverty** in Britain today. Others say there is quite a lot.

Which come closest to your view...

G_ReadOut_II1 "Read out instructions 1" _WEB: "" _TEL: "INTERVIEWER: READ OUT"

- 1 ... that there is very little real poverty in Britain,
- 2 or, that there is quite a lot?

{ASK IF VERSION 3-8} FuturPov

And over the next ten years, do you think that poverty in Britain will...

G_ReadOut_II1 "Read out instructions 1" _WEB: "" _TEL: "INTERVIEWER: READ OUT"

1 ...increase,

- 2 decrease,
- 3 or stay at about the same level?

{ASK IF VERSION 3-8} FEELPOOR

How often do you and your household feel poor nowadays?

G_ReadOut_II1 "Read out instructions 1"

_WEB: "" _TEL: "INTERVIEWER: READ OUT"

- 1 Never
- 2 Every now and then
- 3 Often
- 4 Almost all the time

{ASK IF VERSION 3-8} DWPInt2

Now some questions about retirement and pensions.

{ASK IF VERSION 3-8 – HALF SAMPLE} Sellhome

How likely do you think it is that you will sell a home to help fund your retirement?

IF ASKED: 'Home' is the building but not the contents.

G_ReadOut_II1 "Read out instructions 1" _WEB: "" _TEL: "INTERVIEWER: READ OUT"

- 1 Very likely
- 2 Fairly likely
- 3 Not very likely
- 4 Not at all likely

{ASK IF VERSION 3-8} AffSVRet

How much do you agree or disagree with the following statement?

'I can't afford to put money aside for retirement at the moment'

- 1 Strongly agree
- 2 Agree
- 3 Neither agree nor disagree
- 4 Disagree

5 Strongly disagree

{ASK IF VERSION 3-8} DefContPen

Under a Defined Contribution Pension scheme, someone's pension savings are invested to build up a lump sum which can be accessed during retirement. This is different to a Defined Benefit Scheme which guarantees a fixed salary during retirement.

Are you a member of at least one Defined Contribution Pension scheme?

- 1 Yes
- 2 No

{ASK IF VERSION 3-8 AND DefContPen=1 and (RespAge >55 OR Ragebnd=55-59,60-64,65-69,70 or over)} PENFREEUSEb

Did you take money out of your pension pot before you reached State Pension Age?

- 1 Yes
- 2 No

{ASK IF VERSION 3-8 AND DefContPen=1 and PENFREEUSEb=1} PENFREEUSEWHY

Why did you take money out of your pension pot before State Pension Age?

G_Multi_II1 "Multicode instructions 1"

_WEB: "Please select all that apply"

- _TEL: "INTERVIEWER: READ OUT EACH OPTION AND CODE ALL THAT APPLY"
- 1 To retire early
- 2 To reduce working hours
- 3 To pay off part or all of debts or mortgage
- 4 To be able to provide care
- 5 To give money to family or friends
- 6 To be able to have a flexible income throughout retirement
- 7 To be able to have a secure income throughout retirement
- 8 To be able to access a 25% tax free lump sum
- 9 Other (please specify)
- 10 None of these [EXCLUSIVE]

{ASK IF VERSION 3-8} PrivPen

Do you currently have a private pension?

This could be a workplace pension which you have with an employer or a personal pension that you have set up such as a Self-Invested Personal Pension (SIPP).

1 Yes

2 No

{ASK IF VERSION 3-8 AND PrivPen = 1 AND (RespAge < 55 OR RAgeBnd=16-17,18-24,25-34,35-44,45-54} ConfPen [FLIP SCALE 1...5]

Say you had to choose your own private pension provider. How confident would you be in making that decision?

G_ReadOut_II1 "Read out instructions 1" _WEB: "" _TEL: "INTERVIEWER: READ OUT"

- 1 Very confident
- 2 Quite confident
- 3 Neither confident or unconfident
- 4 Not very confident
- 5 Not at all confident

{ASK IF VERSION 3-8 AND PrivPen = 1} InvestPenUK

What percentage of your private pension would you like invested in companies based in the UK?

Range: 0 ... 100 %

1 I don't care

{ASK IF VERSION 3-8 AND (RespAge < 66 OR Ragebnd=16-17,18-24,25-34,35-44,45-54,55-59,60-64) SPExist [FLIP SCALE]

How confident are you that the State Pension will exist by the time you reach State Pension age?

G_ReadOut_II1 "Read out instructions 1" _WEB: ""

_____TEL: "INTERVIEWER: READ OUT"

- 1 Very confident
- 2 Quite confident
- 3 Neither confident nor unconfident
- 4 Not very confident
- 5 Not at all confident

ISSP

{ASK IF VERSION 1-2, 7}

Intro1

The following questions are about your Internet use. This includes activities such as communicating, buying things, searching for information, entertainment which you do through devices like computers, tablets, smartphones, mobile phones or other devices connected in some way to the Internet.

{ASK IF VERSION 1-2, 7}

Q1

G_ReadOut_II1 "Read out instructions 1" _WEB: "" _TEL: "INTERVIEWER: READ OUT"

During the last 12 months, how often, if at all, did you typically use the Internet on any device whether for work or personal use?

If you are uncertain about your usage, please select the answer that comes closest to your use.

- 1 Almost all the time
- 2 Several times a day
- 3 Once a day
- 4 Several times a week
- 5 Several times a month
- 6 Less often
- 7 Never
- 8 Can't choose
- 9 SPONTANEOUS (Prefer not to answer)

{ASK IF VERSION 1-2, 7 AND Q1 = 7}

Q2

Which of the following are reasons you have not used the Internet in the last 12 months?

G_Grid_II1 "Grid instructions 1"

_WEB: "Please select one answer on every row"

_TEL: "INTERVIEWER: READ OUT EACH STATEMENT AND THE ANSWER CODES. REPEAT ANSWER CODES AS REQUIRED."

GRID ROWS

- A The Internet is not available to me
- B The Internet connection is poor
- C The Internet is too expensive
- D I worry about Internet security and privacy
- E The Internet is not important or useful for me
- F The Internet is not for people of my age
- G The Internet is difficult for me to use
- H I do not want to use the Internet
- I I have difficulty reading or writing
- J I am too busy to use the Internet
- K The authorities restrict access to the Internet in the UK.
- L Other reasons

GRID COLUMNS

- 1 Yes
- 2 No
- 3 Can't choose
- 9 SPONTANEOUS (Prefer not to answer)

{ASK IF VERSION 1-2, 7 AND Q1 = 7}

Q3

G_ReadOut_II1 "Read out instructions 1" _WEB: ""

_TEL: "INTERVIEWER: READ OUT"

In the last 12 months how often, if at all, did you ask someone to do something for you on the Internet on your behalf, such as sending an email, getting information or shopping online?

10	Not at all
11	Once or twice
12	More often
13	Can't choose
9	SPONTANEOUS (Prefer not to answer)

{ASK IF VERSION 1-2, 7 AND Q1 = 7}

Q4

If you needed to do something on the Internet in the near future, how likely is it that someone will do it for you?

- 1 Very likely
- 2 Rather likely
- 3 Rather unlikely
- 4 Very unlikely
- 5 Can't choose
- 9 SPONTANEOUS (Prefer not to answer)

{ASK IF VERSION 1-2, 7 AND Q1 = 7}

Q5

G_ReadOut_II1 "Read out instructions 1" _WEB: "" _TEL: "INTERVIEWER: READ OUT"

How likely is it that you will personally use the Internet in the next 12 months?

- 1 Very likely
- 2 Rather likely
- 3 Rather unlikely
- 4 Very unlikely
- 5 Can't choose
- 9 SPONTANEOUS (Prefer not to answer)

{ASK IF VERSION 1-2, 7 AND Q1 <> 7}

Q6

How often, if at all, do you typically use the Internet on any device at the following locations for any reason?

G_Grid_II1 "Grid instructions 1"

_WEB: "Please select one answer on every row"

_TEL: "INTERVIEWER: READ OUT EACH STATEMENT AND THE ANSWER CODES. REPEAT ANSWER CODES AS REQUIRED."

GRID ROWS

- A At home
- B At your work-place/ at school/ at university
- C In public places

GRID COLUMNS

- 1 Almost always
- 2 Often
- 3 Sometimes
- 4 Hardly ever
- 5 Never
- 6 No access
- 7 Can't choose
- 9 SPONTANEOUS (Prefer not to answer)

{ASK IF VERSION 1-2, 7 AND Q1 <> 7}

Q7

G_ReadOut_II1 "Read out instructions 1" _WEB: "" _TEL: "INTERVIEWER: READ OUT"

In the last 12 months, how often, if at all, were you asked by someone to do something on their behalf on the Internet, such as sending an email, getting information or shopping online?

Exclude work related tasks.

- 1 Not at all
- 2 Once or twice
- 3 More often
- 4 Can't choose
- 9 SPONTANEOUS (Prefer not to answer)

{ASK IF VERSION 1-2, 7 ANDQ1 <> 7}

Q8

G_ReadOut_II1 "Read out instructions 1" _WEB: "" _TEL: "INTERVIEWER: READ OUT"

In the last 12 months, how often, if at all, did you deliberately reduce the time you spent on the Internet?

- 1 Every day or almost every day
- 2 Several times a week
- 3 Several times a month
- 4 Several times a year
- 5 Less often
- 6 Never
- 7 Can't choose

9 SPONTANEOUS (Prefer not to answer)

{ASK IF VERSION 1-2, 7 AND Q8 = 1,2,3,4,5}

Q9

G_ReadOut_II1 "Read out instructions 1" _WEB: "" _TEL: "INTERVIEWER: READ OUT"

What is the main reason why you deliberately reduced the time you spent on the Internet?

- 1 I had concerns about data security or privacy issues
- 2 I felt it negatively impacted my physical or mental wellbeing
- 3 I felt overwhelmed by the amount of information
- 4 I was asked to spend more time in person with family or friends
- 5 I wanted more time for offline activities
- 6 I couldn't afford to use the Internet
- 7 Other reasons
- 8 Can't choose
- 9 SPONTANEOUS (Prefer not to answer)

{ASK IF VERSION 1-2, 7 AND Q1 <> 7}

Q10

How would you rate your ability to do the following?

G_Grid_II1 "Grid instructions 1"

_WEB: "Please select one answer on every row" _TEL: "INTERVIEWER: READ OUT EACH STATEMENT AND THE ANSWER CODES. REPEAT ANSWER CODES AS REQUIRED."

GRID ROWS

- A Using the Internet
- B Doing online searches
- C Knowing which information should not be shared online
- D Learning how to use new software or apps

GRID COLUMNS

- 1 Very good
- 2 Good
- 3 Neither good nor bad
- 4 Bad
- 5 Very bad
- 6 Can't choose

9 SPONTANEOUS (Prefer not to answer)

{ASK IF VERSION 1-2, 7 AND Q1 <> 7}

Q11

How often, if at all, do you use the Internet for the following purposes?

G_Grid_II1 "Grid instructions 1"

_WEB: "Please select one answer on every row"

_TEL: "INTERVIEWER: READ OUT EACH STATEMENT AND THE ANSWER CODES. REPEAT ANSWER CODES AS REQUIRED."

GRID ROWS

- A Communicating (for example writing, talking, video calling)
- B Sharing or posting photos or videos
- C Searching for information
- D Playing video games
- E Downloading or listening to music or watching videos and movies
- F Shopping, paying bills and other financial transactions

GRID COLUMNS

- 1 Very often
- 2 Often
- 3 Sometimes
- 4 Hardly ever
- 5 Never
- 6 Can't choose
- 7 SPONTANEOUS (Prefer not to answer)

{ASK IF VERSION 1-2, 7 AND Q1 <> 7}

Q12

How much do you agree or disagree with the following statements?

G_Grid_II1 "Grid instructions 1"

_WEB: "Please select one answer on every row"

_TEL: "INTERVIEWER: READ OUT EACH STATEMENT AND THE ANSWER CODES. REPEAT ANSWER CODES AS REQUIRED."

GRID ROWS

- A I feel more comfortable meeting with people online than in person.
- B Without the Internet I would feel lonely.

GRID COLUMNS

1 Strongly agree

- 2 Agree
- 3 Neither agree nor disagree
- 4 Disagree
- 5 Strongly disagree
- 6 Can't choose
- 9 SPONTANEOUS (Prefer not to answer)

{ASK IF VERSION 1-2, 7 AND Q1 <> 7}

Q13

When looking for news or information about political matters online, how often, if at all, do you:

G_Grid_II1 "Grid instructions 1"

_WEB: "Please select one answer on every row"

_TEL: "INTERVIEWER: READ OUT EACH STATEMENT AND THE ANSWER

CODES. REPEAT ANSWER CODES AS REQUIRED."

GRID ROWS

- A Read, watch or listen to something online you disagree with.
- B Check a news source that's different from what you normally read, watch or listen to online.
- C Try to confirm information you find by searching online for another source.

GRID COLUMNS

- 1 Very often
- 2 Often
- 3 Sometimes
- 4 Rarely
- 5 Never
- 6 Can't choose
- 9 SPONTANEOUS (Prefer not to answer)

{ASK IF VERSION 1-2, 7 AND Q1 <> 7}

Q14

On a scale of 0 to 10, how much do you trust people you are communicating with on the Internet but have never met in person?

0 means you do not trust them at all, and 10 means you trust them completely.

1 0 - No trust at all

1

- 2
- 3 2
- 4 3

- 5 4
- 6 5
- 7 6
- 8 7
- 9 8
- 10 9
- 11 10 Complete trust
- 12 Can't choose
- 99 SPONTANEOUS (Prefer not to answer)

{ASK IF VERSION 1-2, 7 AND Q1 <> 7}

Q15

In the last 12 months, if at all, has your online contact with the following people increased, decreased or remained the same?

G_Grid_II1 "Grid instructions 1"

_WEB: "Please select one answer on every row"

_TEL: "INTERVIEWER: READ OUT EACH STATEMENT AND THE ANSWER CODES. REPEAT ANSWER CODES AS REQUIRED."

GRID ROWS

- A People who share your political views
- B People with different political views from your own

GRID COLUMNS

- 1 Greatly decreased
- 2 Somewhat decreased
- 3 Remained the same
- 4 Somewhat increased
- 5 Greatly increased
- 6 Can't choose
- 9 SPONTANEOUS (Prefer not to answer)

{ASK IF VERSION 1-2, 7 AND Q1 <> 7}

Q16

G_ReadOut_II1 "Read out instructions 1" _WEB: "" _TEL: "INTERVIEWER: READ OUT"

How often, if at all, did you express, support or oppose political views on the Internet or social media in the last 12 months?

1 Every day or almost every day

- 2 Several times a week
- 3 Several times a month
- 4 Several times a year
- 5 Less often
- 6 Never
- 7 Can't choose
- 9 SPONTANEOUS (Prefer not to answer)

Q17

Here are some statements about technology. Technology includes all kinds of machinery, equipment, digital devices, and software.

How much do you agree or disagree with each of these statements?

G Grid II1 "Grid instructions 1"

_WEB: "Please select one answer on every row"

_TEL: "INTERVIEWER: READ OUT EACH STATEMENT AND THE ANSWER CODES. REPEAT ANSWER CODES AS REQUIRED."

GRID ROWS

- A Technology makes our lives easier.
- B Overall, technology does more harm than good.
- C Technology provides more opportunities for the next generation.

GRID COLUMNS

- 1 Strongly agree
- 2 Agree
- 3 Neither agree nor disagree
- 4 Disagree
- 5 Strongly disagree
- 6 Can't choose
- 9 SPONTANEOUS (Prefer not to answer)

{ASK IF VERSION 1-2, 7}

Q18

G_ReadOut_II1 "Read out instructions 1" _WEB: "" _TEL: "INTERVIEWER: READ OUT"

Some people receive emails or text messages from scammers from time to time, some of them also become victims.

Apart from only receiving such messages, have you or someone you know personally ever been a victim of an online scam, identity theft or hacking attack?

- 1 Yes, me myself
- 2 Yes, someone I know personally
- 3 Yes, me and someone else I know personally
- 4 No
- 5 Can't choose
- 9 SPONTANEOUS (Prefer not to answer)

{ASK IF VERSION 1-2, 7}

Q19

G_ReadOut_II1 "Read out instructions 1" _WEB: "" _TEL: "INTERVIEWER: READ OUT"

Some people report experiences of harassment on the Internet. Have you or someone you know personally ever experienced online harassment or online hate speech?

- 1 Yes, me myself
- 2 Yes, someone I know personally
- 3 Yes, me and someone else I know personally
- 4 No
- 5 Can't choose
- 9 SPONTANEOUS (Prefer not to answer)

{ASK IF VERSION 1-2, 7}

Q20

G_ReadOut_II1 "Read out instructions 1" _WEB: "" _TEL: "INTERVIEWER: READ OUT"

Where do you get most of your news about political matters? Please select the most important source.

- 1 Online social media (for example WhatsApp, Facebook, TikTok, Instagram, YouTube)
- 2 Television (including TV apps or access via Internet)
- 3 Newspapers (in print or access via Internet)
- 4 Radio and podcasts (including Internet radio or access via Internet)
- 5 Websites (including exclusively online news sites, news aggregators, portals, or search engines)
- 6 Other

- 7 Can't choose
- 9 SPONTANEOUS (Prefer not to answer)

Q21

In general, how reliable would you rate the news on political matters found in the following sources?

G_Grid_II1 "Grid instructions 1"

_WEB: "Please select one answer on every row" _TEL: "INTERVIEWER: READ OUT EACH STATEMENT AND THE ANSWER CODES. REPEAT ANSWER CODES AS REQUIRED."

GRID ROWS

- A Online social media (for example WhatsApp, Facebook, TikTok, Instagram, YouTube)
- B Television (including TV apps or access via Internet)
- C Newspapers (in print or access via Internet)
- D Radio and podcasts (including Internet radio or access via Internet)
- E Websites (including exclusively online news sites, news aggregators, portals, or search engines)

GRID COLUMNS

- 1 Very unreliable
- 2 Somewhat unreliable
- 3 Somewhat reliable
- 4 Very reliable
- 5 Can't choose
- 9 SPONTANEOUS (Prefer not to answer)

{ASK IF VERSION 1-2, 7}

Q22

G_ReadOut_II1 "Read out instructions 1" _WEB: "" _TEL: "INTERVIEWER: READ OUT"

How interested would you say you personally are in politics?

- 1 Very interested
- 2 Fairly interested
- 3 Somewhat interested
- 4 Not very interested
- 5 Not at all interested

- 6 Can't choose
- 9 SPONTANEOUS (Prefer not to answer)

Q23

Here are some different forms of political and social action that people can take.

Please indicate, for each one, whether you have done any of these things in the last 12 months offline only, online only, or both offline and online.

G_Grid_II1 "Grid instructions 1"

__WEB: "Please select one answer on every row" __TEL: "INTERVIEWER: READ OUT EACH STATEMENT AND THE ANSWER CODES. REPEAT ANSWER CODES AS REQUIRED."

GRID ROWS

- A Signed a petition
- B Took part in a demonstration or political protest
- C Contacted, or attempted to contact, a politician to express your views
- D Organised or helped to organise a demonstration or political protest
- E Belonged to or joined a group that is involved in social issues or working to advance a cause

GRID COLUMNS

- 1 Only offline
- 2 Only online
- 3 Both, offline and online
- 4 Neither offline nor online
- 5 Can't choose
- 9 SPONTANEOUS (Prefer not to answer)

{ASK IF VERSION 1-2, 7}

Q24

In politics people sometimes talk of left and right. Where would you place yourself on a scale from 0 to 10 where 0 means the left and 10 means the right?

1	0 -	Left
---	-----	------

- 2 1
- 3 2
- 4 3
- 5 4 6 5
- 6 5 7 6
- 8 7

- 9 8
- 10 9
- 11 10 Right
- 12 Can't choose
- 99 SPONTANEOUS (Prefer not to answer)

Q25

Generally speaking, would you say that most people can be trusted or that you can't be too careful in dealing with people?

Where would you place yourself on a scale from 0 to 10 where 0 means you can't be too careful, and 10 means most people can be trusted".

10 - You can't be too careful

- 2 1 2 3 3 4 5 4 5 6 6 7 7 8 8 9 10 9 11 10 - Most people can be trusted 12
- Can't choose
 SPONTANEOUS (Prefer not to answer)

{ASK IF VERSION 1-2, 7}

Q26

On a scale of 0 to 10, how much do you personally trust each of the following institutions?

0 means you do not trust an institution at all, and 10 means you trust it completely.

G Grid II1 "Grid instructions 1"

_WEB: "Please select one answer on every row" _TEL: "INTERVIEWER: READ OUT EACH STATEMENT AND THE ANSWER CODES. REPEAT ANSWER CODES AS REQUIRED."

GRID ROWS

- A The UK parliament
- B Courts in the UK

GRID COLUMNS

1	0 - No trust at all
2	1

- 3 2
- 4 3
- 5 4
- 5 6 6
- 7
- 8 7 9
- 8 10 9
- 11 10 - Complete trust
- 12 Can't choose
- SPONTANEOUS (Prefer not to answer) 99

Q27

G_ReadOut_II1 "Read out instructions 1" _WEB: "" _TEL: "INTERVIEWER: READ OUT"

Who should be mostly responsible for protecting personal information when using the Internet?

- 1 Online companies - as they need to ensure they process personal information safely
- 2 People – as they need to take care of their personal information
- 3 Government - as they need to ensure that personal information is protected
- 4 Can't choose
- SPONTANEOUS (Prefer not to answer) 99

{ASK IF VERSION 1-2, 7}

Q28

Do you think that the UK government should or should not have the right to do the following?

G Grid II1 "Grid instructions 1"

_WEB: "Please select one answer on every row"

_TEL: "INTERVIEWER: READ OUT EACH STATEMENT AND THE ANSWER CODES. REPEAT ANSWER CODES AS REQUIRED."

GRID ROWS

- А Keep people under video surveillance in public areas?
- В Monitor e-mails, social media content and any other personal information exchanged on the Internet?

62

GRID COLUMNS

- 1 Definitely should have right
- 2 Probably should have right
- 3 Probably should not have right
- 4 Definitely should not have right
- 5 Can't choose
- 99 SPONTANEOUS (Prefer not to answer)

{ASK IF VERSION 1-2, 7}

Q29

Private companies offer services in return for personal information such as your name, phone number, email address, online-search history, or purchases.

Regardless of whether you use the Internet yourself, please indicate the extent to which you agree or disagree with the following statements.

G_Grid_II1 "Grid instructions 1"

_WEB: "Please select one answer on every row"

_TEL: "INTERVIEWER: READ OUT EACH STATEMENT AND THE ANSWER CODES. REPEAT ANSWER CODES AS REQUIRED."

GRID ROWS

- A I would provide my personal information online in return for discounts and free products
- B I would provide my personal information online even though private companies may use it to make a profit

GRID COLUMNS

- 1 Strongly agree
- 2 Agree
- 3 Neither agree nor disagree
- 4 Disagree
- 5 Strongly disagree
- 6 Can't choose
- 99 SPONTANEOUS (Prefer not to answer)

{ASK IF VERSION 1-2, 7}

Q30

G_ReadOut_II1 "Read out instructions 1" _WEB: ""

______TEL: "INTERVIEWER: READ OUT"

In all countries, there are differences between social groups. Do you think that in the UK women or men are benefitting more, both equally, or neither from the use of the Internet and digital technology?

- 1 Women are benefitting more than men
- 2 Women and men are benefitting equally
- 3 Men are benefitting more than women
- 4 Neither men nor women are benefitting
- 5 Can't choose
- 99 SPONTANEOUS (Prefer not to answer)

{ASK IF VERSION 1-2, 7}

Q31

G_ReadOut_II1 "Read out instructions 1" _WEB: ""

_TEL: "INTERVIEWER: READ OUT"

Do you think that in the UK older people or younger people are benefitting more, both equally, or neither, from the use of the Internet and digital technology?

- 1 Older people are benefitting more than younger people
- 2 Older people and younger people are benefitting equally
- 3 Younger people are benefitting more than older people
- 4 Neither older nor younger are benefitting
- 5 Can't choose
- 99 SPONTANEOUS (Prefer not to answer)

{ASK IF VERSION 1-2, 7}

Q32

G_ReadOut_II1 "Read out instructions 1" _WEB: "" _TEL: "INTERVIEWER: READ OUT"

Do you think that in the UK people who live in the countryside or people who live in cities are benefitting more, both equally, or neither, from the use of the Internet and digital technology?

- 1 People who live in the countryside are benefitting more than people who live in cities
- 2 People who live in the countryside and people who live in cities are benefitting equally
- 3 People who live in cities are benefitting more than people who live in the countryside

- 4 Neither people from the countryside nor from cities are benefitting
- 5 Can't choose
- 99 SPONTANEOUS (Prefer not to answer)

Q33

G_ReadOut_II1 "Read out instructions 1" _WEB: "" _TEL: "INTERVIEWER: READ OUT"

Do you think that in the UK the highly educated or the less well educated are benefitting more, or both equally, or neither, from the use of the Internet and digital technology?

- 1 The highly educated are benefitting more than the less well educated
- 2 The highly and the less well educated are benefitting equally
- 3 The less well educated are benefitting more than the highly educated
- 4 Neither highly educated nor less well educated are benefitting
- 5 Can't choose
- 99 SPONTANEOUS (Prefer not to answer)

{ASK IF VERSION 1-2, 7}

Q34

G_ReadOut_II1 "Read out instructions 1" _WEB: "" _TEL: "INTERVIEWER: READ OUT"

Do you think that in the UK rich people or poor people are benefitting more, or both equally, or neither, from the use of the Internet and digital technology?

1 Rich people are benefitting more than poor people

- 2 Rich and poor people are benefitting equally
- 3 Poor people are benefitting more than rich people
- 4 Neither rich people nor poor people are benefitting
- 5 Can't choose
- 99 SPONTANEOUS (Prefer not to answer)

{ASK IF VERSION 1-2, 7}

Intro2

The next questions deal with robots and artificial intelligence. 'Artificial intelligence' is the ability of a robot or computer to perform tasks commonly associated with humans.

{ASK IF VERSION 1-2, 7}

Q35

G_ReadOut_II1 "Read out instructions 1" _WEB: "" _TEL: "INTERVIEWER: READ OUT"

Overall, how worried, if at all, are you that in the next 10 years machines, computer programmes, and Artificial Intelligence (AI) will take over many of the jobs done by humans?

- 1 Very worried
- 2 Somewhat worried
- 3 Neither worried nor unworried
- 4 Not very worried
- 5 Not worried at all
- 6 Can't choose
- 99 SPONTANEOUS (Prefer not to answer)

{ASK IF VERSION 1-2, 7}

Q36

Various human actions can be done by robots or Artificial Intelligence (AI). For each of the following, please indicate, using a scale from 0 to 10, how you would personally feel about it.

On this scale, '0' means that you would feel "totally uncomfortable" and '10' means that you would feel "totally comfortable" with this situation.

G_Grid_II1 "Grid instructions 1" _WEB: "Please select one answer on every row" _TEL: "INTERVIEWER: READ OUT EACH STATEMENT AND THE ANSWER CODES. REPEAT ANSWER CODES AS REQUIRED."

GRID ROWS

- A Having a medical operation performed on you by a robot
- B Being driven in a driverless car
- C Not being able to tell whether information is from an Artificial Intelligence (AI) or a real person.
- D Having to communicate with an Artificial Intelligence (AI) instead of a real person.
- E Not being able to check the accuracy of information generated by an Artificial Intelligence (AI).

GRID COLUMNS

10 - Totally comfortable with this situation Can't choose

0 - Totally uncomfortable with this situation

99 SPONTANEOUS (Prefer not to answer)

DLUHC

(ASK IF VERSION 4, 5)

[BelongUK]

To what extent, if at all, do you feel a sense of belonging to the United Kingdom?

G_ReadOut_II1 "Read out instructions 1" _WEB: ""

_____TEL: "INTERVIEWER: READ OUT"

1 A lot

- 2 A fair amount
- 3 Not very much
- 4 Not at all
- 5 (Don't know)
- 6 (Prefer not to answer)

(ASK IF VERSION 4, 5)

[PartofUK]

Do you think that being part of the United Kingdom is good, bad, or makes no difference, for [England/Scotland/Wales]?

- 1 Very good
- 2 Fairly good
- 3 Makes no difference
- 4 Fairly bad
- 5 Very bad
- 6 (Don't know)
- 7 (Prefer not to answer)

Unfunded

(ASK IF VERSION 1-6, 8) [UnfIntro]

And now for some questions on a range of different topics

Attitudes to private/state schools

(ASK IF VERSION 1-2)

[Privfect] (2010, 1995)

If there were fewer private schools in Britain today do you think, on the whole, that state schools would ...

G_ReadOut_II1 "Read out instructions 1" _WEB: "" _TEL: "INTERVIEWER: READ OUT"

1 Benefit

- 2 Suffer
- 3 or would it make no difference?

Zero hours contracts and employment rights

(ASK IF VERSION 1-2)

[EmpRight]

Flexible working contracts are employment contracts where the hours of work someone is offered vary from week to week. They could be offered a lot of work or they could be offered no work at all.

Some people think these contracts are a good thing because they can give workers flexibility in the hours they work. Other people think they are a bad thing because they don't provide workers with the same security as a standard contract

What do you think? Are flexible working contracts...

- 1. ...Good
- 2. Neither good nor bad
- 3. Bad?
- 4. [SPONTANEOUS] It depends

Taxes and government spending

(ASK IF VERSION 3-4)

[Spend1]

The following are some items of government spending. Which of them, if any, would be your highest priority for **extra** spending?

G_ReadOut_II1 "Read out instructions 1" _WEB: "" _TEL: "INTERVIEWER: READ OUT"

- 1 Education
- 2 Defence
- 3 Health
- 4 Housing
- 5 Public transport
- 6 Roads
- 7 Police and prisons
- 8 Social security benefits
- 9 Help for industry
- 10 Overseas aid
- 11 (None of these)
- 98 (Don't know)
- 99 (Prefer not to answer)

(ASK IF VERSION 3-4, and if not 'None of these', 'Don't know', or 'Prefer not to answer' at [Spend1])

{Ask if not 'None of these', 'Don't know', or 'Prefer not to answer' at Spend1} [Spend2]

And which next?

- 1 Education
- 2 Defence
- 3 Health
- 4 Housing
- 5 Public transport
- 6 Roads
- 7 Police and prisons
- 8 Social security benefits
- 9 Help for industry
- 10 Overseas aid
- 11 (None of these)
- 98 (Don't know)
- 99 (Prefer not to answer)

(ASK IF VERSION 3-4)

[GovResp1-7]

On the whole do you think it should or should not be the Government's responsibility to....

G_Grid_II1 "Grid instructions 1"

_WEB: "Please select one answer on every row" _TEL: "INTERVIEWER: READ OUT EACH STATEMENT AND THE ANSWER CODES. REPEAT ANSWER CODES AS REQUIRED."

GRID ROWS

- 1 Provide a job for everyone who wants one
- 2 Keep prices under control
- 3 Provide health care for the sick
- 4 Provide a decent standard of living for the old
- 5 Provide industry with the help it needs to grow
- 6 Provide a decent standard of living for the unemployed
- 7 Reduce income differences between the rich and the poor.

GRID COLUMNS

- 1 Definitely should
- 2 Probably should
- 3 Probably should not
- 4 Definitely should not
- 8 (Don't know)
- 9 (Prefer not to answer)

Assisted dying

(ASK IF VERSION 1, 8) [AssDIntr]

. .

Now we would like to ask some questions about voluntary euthanasia – also known as assisted dying – that is, when someone ends the life of another person **at their request**.

We will show you some circumstances in which someone might ask a **doctor** to end their life. In each case please tell us whether you think a doctor should be allowed by law to do so.

Remember, you can skip these questions if you would prefer not to answer them.

(ASK IF VERSION 1, 8)

[EuPain2]

First, a person with an **incurable and painful illness**, from which **they are likely to die in the next few weeks or months** – for example someone dying of cancer. Do you think that, if they ask for it, a doctor should ever be allowed by law to end their life, or not?

G_ReadOut_II1 "Read out instructions 1" _WEB: "" _TEL: "INTERVIEWER: READ OUT"

- 1 Definitely should be allowed
- 2 Probably should be allowed
- 3 Probably should not be allowed
- 4 Definitely should not be allowed
- 8 (Don't know)
- 9 (Prefer not to answer)

(ASK IF VERSION 1, 8) [EuNDiSh2]

Next, a person with an **incurable and painful illness**, from which they **will not die**. Do you think that, if they ask for it, a doctor should ever be allowed by law to end their life, or not?

- 1 Definitely should be allowed
- 2 Probably should be allowed
- 3 Probably should not be allowed
- 4 Definitely should not be allowed
- 8 (Don't know)
- 9 (Prefer not to answer)

(ASK IF VERSION 1, 8)

[AssDSign]

IF WEB:

Thank you for answering these questions. We'll move on now to a different topic, but in case you would like to speak to anyone about the issues we have just covered, you can contact Mind on 0300 123 3393 or Samaritans on 116 123.

IF TEL:

INTERVIEWER NOTE: If respondent appears distressed by the previous two questions, please read the following:

"Thank you for answering these questions. We'll move on now to a different topic, but in case you would like to speak to anyone about the issues we have just covered, you can contact Mind on 0300 123 3393 or Samaritans on 116 123"

Tobacco and cannabis

(ASK IF VERSION 2-3)

[SmokBanB]

To what extent do you agree or disagree with the following statement?

'It should eventually be illegal to sell cigarettes to anyone, whatever their age.'

- 1 Strongly agree
- 2 Agree
- 3 Neither agree nor disagree
- 4 Disagree
- 5 Strongly disagree

- 8 (Don't know)
- 9 (Prefer not to answer)

(ASK IF VERSION 2-3)

[CanLegal]

Which of these statements comes closest to your own view?

G_ReadOut_II1 "Read out instructions 1" _WEB: "" _TEL: "INTERVIEWER: READ OUT"

- 1 Taking cannabis should be legal, without restrictions
- 2 Taking cannabis should be legal, but it should only be available from licensed shops
- 3 Taking cannabis should remain illegal
- 8 (Don't know)
- 9 (Prefer not to answer)

Poverty, inequality, and cost of living

(ASK IF VERSION 4-5)

[TaxHISc2]

Generally, how would you describe taxes in Britain today for those with **high** incomes? Taxes are...

- 1 Much too high
- 2 Too high,
- 3 About right
- 4 Too low
- 5 Much too low
- 6 Can't choose
- 8 SPONTANEOUS (Don't know)
- 9 SPONTANEOUS (Prefer not to answer)

(ASK IF VERSION 4-5)

[TaxMidSC]

Next, for those with middle incomes, are taxes...

G_ReadOut_II1 "Read out instructions 1" _WEB: "" _TEL: "INTERVIEWER: READ OUT"

- 1 Much too high
- 2 Too high,
- 3 About right
- 4 Too low
- 5 Much too low
- 6 Can't choose
- 8 SPONTANEOUS (Don't know)
- 9 SPONTANEOUS (Prefer not to answer)

(ASK IF VERSION 4-5)

[TaxLowSC]

Lastly, for those with low incomes, are taxes...

G_ReadOut_II1 "Read out instructions 1" _WEB: "" _TEL: "INTERVIEWER: READ OUT"

- 1 Much too high
- 2 Too high,
- 3 About right
- 4 Too low
- 5 Much too low
- 6 Can't choose
- 8 SPONTANEOUS (Don't know)
- 9 SPONTANEOUS (Prefer not to answer)

(ASK IF VERSION 4-5)

[HIncPast]

Looking back over the last year or so, would you say your household's income has ...

G_ReadOut_II1 "Read out instructions 1" _WEB: ""

- _TEL: "INTERVIEWER: READ OUT"
- 1 ...fallen behind prices,
- 2 kept up with prices,

- 3 or, gone up by more than prices?
- 8 SPONTANEOUS (Don't know)
- 9 SPONTANEOUS (Prefer not to answer/NA)

European Union

(ASK IF VERSION 6, 8)

[EUAddRef]

Say there was a referendum in which you were asked to choose between the UK staying out of the EU or the UK rejoining the EU.

How would you vote?

G_ReadOut_II1 "Read out instructions 1" _WEB: "" _TEL: "INTERVIEWER: READ OUT"

- 1 Stay out of the EU
- 2 Rejoin the EU
- 3 I would not vote
- 8 (Don't know)
- 9 (Prefer not to answer)

(ASK IF VERSION 6, 8)

[ECPolicy2]

Leaving aside the result of the referendum on Britain's membership of the European Union, what do you think Britain's policy should be? Should it be to...

G_ReadOut_II1 "Read out instructions 1" _WEB: "" TEL: "INTERVIEWER: READ OUT"

- 1 Be outside the European Union
- 2 Be part of the EU but try to **reduce** the EU's powers
- 3 Be part of the EU and try to keep the EU's powers as they are
- 4 Be part of the EU and try to **increase** the EU's powers
- 5 Work for the formation of a single European government
- 8 (Don't know)
- 9 (Prefer not to answer)

(ASK IF VERSION 6, 8)

[EUExEco2]

From what you have seen and heard so far, do you think that as a result of leaving the EU, Britain's **economy** is better off, worse off, or has it not made much difference?

G_ReadOut_II1 "Read out instructions 1" _WEB: "" _TEL: "INTERVIEWER: READ OUT"

- 1 A lot better off
- 2 A little better off
- 3 Hasn't made much difference
- 4 A little worse off
- 5 A lot worse off
- 8 (Don't know)
- 9 (Prefer not to answer)

(ASK IF VERSION 6, 8)

[EUExIm2]

From what you have seen and heard so far, do you think that as a result of leaving the EU, immigration to Britain is higher, lower, or that it has not made much difference?

G_ReadOut_II1 "Read out instructions 1" _WEB: "" _TEL: "INTERVIEWER: READ OUT"

- 1 A lot higher
- 2 A little higher
- 3 Hasn't made much difference
- 4 A little lower
- 5 A lot lower
- 8 (Don't know)
- 9 (Prefer not to answer)

(ASK IF VERSION 6, 8)

[EUImpSov]

How much do you agree or disagree that being outside the European Union has strengthened Britain's ability to be an independent country that makes its own laws?

G_ReadOut_II1 "Read out instructions 1" _WEB: "" _TEL: "INTERVIEWER: READ OUT"

1 Agree strongly

- 2 Agree
- 3 Neither agree nor disagree
- Disagree 4
- 5 Disagree strongly
- (Don't know) 8
- (Prefer not to answer) 9

Immigration

(ASK IF VERSION 6, 8)

[MiEcono]

1

2

3

4

5

6 7

8

9

11 98

99

On a scale of 0 to 10, where 0 is extremely bad and 10 is extremely good, would you say it is generally bad or good for Britain's economy that migrants come to Britain from other countries?"

0 - Extremely bad 1 2 3 4 5 - Neither 6 7 8 10 9 10 - Extremely good SPONTANEOUS (Don't know) SPONTANEOUS (Prefer not to answer)

(ASK IF VERSION 6, 8)

[MiCultur]

And on a scale of 0 to 10, where 0 is undermined and 10 is enriched, would you say that Britain's cultural life is generally undermined or enriched by migrants coming to live here from other countries?"

- 0 Undermined 1 2 1 3 2 4 3 5 4 6 5 - Neither 7 6 8 7 9 8 10 9 10 - Enriched 11 SPONTANEOUS (Don't know) 98
- 99 SPONTANEOUS (Prefer not to answer)

Foreign policy and defence

(ASK IF VERSION 3-4)

[Gvspend5]

The following questions ask your opinions on Britain's military defence.

Would you like to see more or less government spending in military and defence?

G_ReadOut_II1 "Read out instructions 1" _WEB: "" _TEL: "INTERVIEWER: READ OUT"

- 1 Spend much more
- 2 Spend more
- 3 Spend the same as now
- 4 Spend less
- 5 Spend much less
- 8 (Don't know)
- 9 (Prefer not to answer)

(ASK IF VERSION 3-4)

[peace]

Please say how serious a threat to world peace you think each of these countries is likely to be over the next ten years or so?

G_Grid_II1 "Grid instructions 1"

_WEB: "Please select one answer on every row"

_TEL: "INTERVIEWER: READ OUT EACH STATEMENT AND THE ANSWER CODES. REPEAT ANSWER CODES AS REQUIRED."

GRID ROWS

- 1 China
- 2 The USA
- 3 Iran
- 4 Israel
- 5 Russia
- 6 North Korea
- 7 Saudi Arabia

GRID COLUMNS

- 1 A very serious threat
- 2 Quite a serious threat
- 3 Not a very serious threat
- 4 No threat at all

Climate change and housing

(ASK IF VERSION 5-6)

[ccbeliev]

Which of the following statements comes closest to your view ...

G_ReadOut_II1 "Read out instructions 1" _WEB: "" _TEL: "INTERVIEWER: READ OUT"

- 1 ... I don't believe that climate change is taking place
- 2 ...I believe that climate change is taking place but not as a result of human action
- 3 ... I believe that climate change is taking place and is, at least partly, a result of human action
- 8 SPONTANEOUS (Don't know)
- 9 SPONTANEOUS (Prefer not to answer)

(ASK IF VERSION 5-6 and ccbeliev <> 1)

[ccnthum]

Do you think that climate change is caused by natural processes, human activity, or both?

G_ReadOut_II1 "Read out instructions 1" _WEB: ""

_____TEL: "INTERVIEWER: READ OUT"

- 1 Entirely by natural processes
- 2 Mainly by natural processes
- 3 About equally by natural processes and human activity
- 4 Mainly by human activity
- 5 Entirely by human activity
- 6 I don't think climate change is happening
- 8 SPONTANEOUS (Don't know)
- 9 SPONTANEOUS (Prefer not to answer)

(ASK IF VERSION 5-6)

[ccISSUE]

To what extent would you support or oppose the government taking each of the following steps to reduce the impact of climate change...

G_Grid_II1 "Grid instructions 1"

_WEB: "Please select one answer on every row" _TEL: "INTERVIEWER: READ OUT EACH STATEMENT AND THE ANSWER CODES. REPEAT ANSWER CODES AS REQUIRED."

{RANDOMISE GRID ROWS 1-8} {RANDOMISE GRID COLS 1-5}

GRID ROWS

- 1 Increasing the tax on petrol
- 2 Banning the installation of gas boilers in new homes
- 3 Increasing the tax on flying
- 4 Banning the sale of petrol and diesel cars
- 5 Subsidising the cost of installing heat pumps in people's homes
- 6 Making it easier to build pylons that carry electricity wires across the countryside
- 7 Building new nuclear power stations
- 8 Building more wind farms on land

GRID COLUMNS

- 1 Strongly support
- 2 Somewhat support
- 3 Neither support nor oppose
- 4 Somewhat oppose
- 5 Strongly oppose
- 8 (Don't know)
- 9 (Refusal)

(ASK IF VERSION 5-6) [HomsBult]

Would you support or oppose more homes being built in your local area?

G_ReadOut_II1 "Read out instructions 1" _WEB: "" _TEL: "INTERVIEWER: READ OUT"

- 1 Support strongly
- 2 Support
- 3 Neither support nor oppose
- 4 Oppose
- 5 Oppose strongly
- 6 SPONTANEOUS (It depends)
- 8 SPONTANEOUS (Don't know)
- 9 SPONTANEOUS (Prefer not to answer)

Prejudice and equalities

(ASK IF VERSION 1, 8)

[EqOppGay / EqOppT / ChOpWomm / EqOppBlk]

Do you think attempts to give equal opportunities have gone too far or not gone far enough for...

G_Grid_II1 "Grid instructions 1" _WEB: "Please select one answer on every row" _TEL: "INTERVIEWER: READ OUT EACH STATEMENT AND THE ANSWER CODES. REPEAT ANSWER CODES AS REQUIRED."

GRID ROWS

- 1 Lesbian, gay and bisexual people
- 2 Transgender people
- 3 Women
- 4 Black and Asian people

GRID COLUMNS

- 1 Gone much too far
- 2 Gone too far
- 3 About right
- 4 Not gone far enough

- 5 Not gone nearly far enough
- 8 (Don't know)
- 9 (Prefer not to answer)

(ASK IF VERSION 1, 8)

[TBirCert]

How much do you agree or disagree that a person who is transgender should be able to have the sex recorded on their birth certificate changed if they want?

G_ReadOut_II1 "Read out instructions 1" _WEB: "" _TEL: "INTERVIEWER: READ OUT"

- 1 Strongly agree
- 2 Agree
- 3 Neither agree nor disagree
- 4 Disagree
- 5 Strongly disagree
- 8 SPONTANEOUS (Don't know)
- 9 SPONTANEOUS (Prefer not to answer)

Voting and political system

(ASK IF VERSION 5-6)

[VoteSyst]

Some people say we should change the voting system for general elections to the UK House of Commons to allow smaller political parties to get a fairer share of MPs.

Others say that we should keep the voting system for the House of Commons as it is to produce effective government.

Which view comes **closer** to your own?

- 1 That we should change the voting system for the House of Commons
- 2 Keep it as it is
- 8 (Don't know)
- 9 (Prefer not to answer)

(ASK IF VERSION 5-6)

[Coalitin]

Which do you think would generally be better for Britain nowadays ...

G_ReadOut_II1 "Read out instructions 1" _WEB: "" _TEL: "INTERVIEWER: READ OUT"

1 ...to have a government at Westminster formed by one political party on its own,

- 2 or, to have a government at Westminster formed by two political parties together in coalition?
- 8 (Don't know)
- 9 (Refusal)

(ASK IF VERSION 5-6)

[Vot1617A]

Do you think that 16 and 17 year olds should or should not be able to vote in general elections?

G_ReadOut_II1 "Read out instructions 1" _WEB: "" _TEL: "INTERVIEWER: READ OUT"

- 1 Definitely should
- 2 Probably should
- 3 Probably should not
- 4 Definitely should not
- 8 (Don't know)
- 9 (Refusal)

(ASK IF VERSION 5-6)

[ConLabDf]

Now considering everything the Conservative and Labour parties stand for, would you say that \ldots

- 1 ... there is a great difference between them,
- 2 some difference,
- 3 or, not much difference?
- 8 (Don't know)
- 9 (Refusal)

(ASK IF VERSION 5-6)

[GovTrust]

How much do you trust British governments of any party to place the needs of the nation above the interests of their own political party?

G_ReadOut_II1 "Read out instructions 1" _WEB: "" _TEL: "INTERVIEWER: READ OUT"

- 1 Just about always
- 2 Most of the time
- 3 Only some of the time
- 4 Almost never
- 8 (Don't know)
- 9 (Refusal)

(ASK IF VERSION 5-6)

[MPsTrust]

And how much do you trust politicians of any party in Britain to tell the truth when they are in a tight corner?

G_ReadOut_II1 "Read out instructions 1" _WEB: "" _TEL: "INTERVIEWER: READ OUT"

- 1 Just about always
- 2 Most of the time
- 3 Only some of the time
- 4 Almost never
- 8 (Don't know)
- 9 (Refusal)

(ASK IF VERSION 5-6)

[GovtWork]

Which of these statements best describes your opinion on the present system of governing Britain?

- 1 Works extremely well and could not be improved
- 2 Could be improved in small ways but mainly works well
- 3 Could be improved quite a lot
- 4 Needs a great deal of improvement
- 8 (Don't know)
- 9 (Prefer not to answer)

(ASK IF VERSION 5-6)

[VoteDuty]

Which of these statements comes closest to your view about general elections?

G_ReadOut_II1 "Read out instructions 1" _WEB: "" _TEL: "INTERVIEWER: READ OUT"

- 1 It's not really worth voting
- 2 People should vote only if they care who wins
- 3 It's everyone's duty to vote
- 8 Don't know
- 9 (Prefer not to answer)

General Election vote

ASK ALL (ALL VERSIONS)

[Voted]

Talking to people about the general election on the 4th of July, we have found that a lot of people didn't manage to vote. How about you - did you manage to vote in the general election?

G_ReadOut_II1 "Read out instructions 1" _WEB: "" _TEL: "INTERVIEWER: READ OUT"

- 1 Yes, voted
- 2 No
- 3 Not applicable, I was not eligible to vote, or too young
- 8 (Don't know)
- 9 (Prefer not to answer)

ASK IF 'YES, VOTED' AT [VOTED] (ALL VERSIONS) [Vote]

Which party did you vote for in the general election?

G_NoPrompt_II1

- 1 Conservative
- 2 Labour

- 3 Liberal Democrat
- 4 Scottish National Party
- 5 Plaid Cymru
- 6 Green Party
- 7 UK Independence Party (UKIP)
- 8 Reform UK (previously known as Brexit Party)
- 9 Democratic Unionist Party (DUP)
- 10 Sinn Féin
- 11 Social Democratic & Labour Party (SDLP)
- 12 Alliance Party
- 13 Ulster Unionist Party (UUP)
- 14 Traditional Unionist Voice (TUV)
- 15 Other party (please say what)
- 16 Independent candidate
- 98 (Don't know)
- 99 (Prefer not to answer)

Monarchy 2

(ASK IF VERSION 5-6)

[HeadStat]

Do you think the UK should continue to have a monarchy, or should it have an elected head of state instead?

- -
- 1 The UK should continue to have a monarchy
- 2 The UK should have an elected head of state
- 8 (Don't know)
- 9 (Refusal)

Classification part 2

ASK ALL (ALL VERSIONS) REPEAT BSA 21

[Introclass2]

Finally, we would like to ask some questions about you.

These questions are to help us with our analysis. If you don't want to answer a question, {IF WEB 'simply leave the question blank and click the 'Next' button to make the options 'Don't know' and 'Prefer not to say' appear.' ; IF TEL 'just say so and I will record that as your answer.'}"

National identity 1

ASK IF RESPONDENT LIVES IN ENGLAND, SCOTLAND, OR WALES (ALL VERSIONS) REPEAT BSA 21 [NatldGB]

Which, if any, of the following best describes how you see yourself?

G_ReadOut_II1 "Read out instructions 1" _WEB: "" _TEL: "INTERVIEWER: READ OUT"

- 1 (English/Scottish/Welsh) not British
- 2 **More** (*English/Scottish/Welsh*) than British
- 3 **Equally** (*English/Scottish/Welsh*) and British
- 4 **More British** than (*English/Scottish/Welsh*)
- 5 British not (English/Scottish/Welsh)
- 6 Other description (please say what)
- 7 SPONTANEOUS (None of these)
- 8 SPONTANEOUS (Don't know)
- 9 SPONTAENOUS (Prefer not to answer)

Religion

ASK ALL (ALL VERSIONS) REPEAT BSA 21 [ReIRFW]

Do you regard yourself as belonging to any particular religion?

G_ReadOut_II1 "Read out instructions 1"

WEB: ""

- 1 No religion
- 2 Christian – no denomination
- 3 Roman Catholic
- 4 Church of England or Anglican
- 5 Baptist
- 6 Methodist
- Presbyterian (including Church of Scotland, URC, Congregational, Free 7 Presbyterian)
- 8 Buddhist
- Hindu 9
- Jewish 10
- Muslim 11
- 12 Sikh
- 13 Any other religion (please say what)
- 98 SPONTAENOUS (Don't know)
- 99 SPONTAENOUS (Prefer not to answer)

ASK IF ReIRFW NOT 'refusal' (ALL VERSIONS) REPEAT BSA 21 [RelFFW]

In what religion, if any, were you brought up?

G_ReadOut_II1 "Read out instructions 1" _WEB: ""

_TEL: "INTERVIEWER: READ OUT"

- 1 No religion
- 2 3 Christian - no denomination
- Roman Catholic
- 4 Church of England or Anglican
- 5 Baptist
- 6 Methodist
- 7 Presbyterian (including Church of Scotland, URC, Congregational, Free Presbyterian)
- 8 Buddhist
- Hindu 9
- 10 Jewish
- Muslim 11
- 12 Sikh
- Any other religion (please say what) SPONTAENOUS (Don't know) 13
- 98
- 99 SPONTANEOUS (Prefer not to answer)

ASK IF ReIRFW >1 and not refusal OR RELFFW >1 and not Refusal (ALL VERSIONS) REPEAT BSA 21

[ChAttend]

Apart from such special occasions as weddings, funerals and baptisms, how often nowadays do you attend services or meetings connected with your religion?

G_ReadOut_II1 "Read out instructions 1" _WEB: ""

_TEL: "INTERVIEWER: READ OUT"

- 1 Once a week or more
- 2 Less often but at least once in two weeks
- 3 Less often but at least once a month
- 4 Less often but at least twice a year
- 5 Less often but at least once a year
- 6 Less often than once a year
- 7 Never or practically never
- 8 Varies too much to say
- 98 SPONTAENOUS (Don't know)
- 99 SPONTAENOUS (Prefer not to answer)

National identity 2 and ethnicity

ASK ALL (ALL VERSIONS) REPEAT BSA 21

[NationU]

Which, if any, of the following describes the way you think of yourself?

G_Multi_II1 "Multicode instructions 1" _WEB: "Please select all that apply" _TEL: "INTERVIEWER: READ OUT EACH OPTION AND CODE ALL THAT APPLY"

Please select all that apply

RANDOMISE ANSWER OPTIONS

- 1 British
- 2 English
- 3 European
- 4 Irish
- 5 Northern Irish
- 6 Scottish
- 7 Ulster
- 8 Welsh
- 9 Other answer (please say what)

- 10 None of these
- 98 SPONTANEOUS (Don't know)
- 99 SPONTANEOUS (Prefer not to answer)

ASK IF MORE THAN ONE ANSWER SELECTED AT [NATIONU] (ALL VERSIONS) REPEAT BSA 21

[BNationU]

NOTE TO PROGRAMMER: ONLY DISPLAY ANSWERS SELECTED AT NATIONU

If you had to choose, which one best describes the way you think of yourself?

G_ReadOut_II1 "Read out instructions 1" _WEB: "" _TEL: "INTERVIEWER: READ OUT"

RANDOMISE ANSWER OPTIONS

- 1 British
- 2 English
- 3 European
- 4 Irish
- 5 Northern Irish
- 6 Scottish
- 7 Ulster
- 8 Welsh
- 9 Other answer (please say what)
- 10 None of these
- 98 SPONATANEOUS (Don't know)
- 99 SPONTANEOUS (Prefer not to answer)

ASK ALL (ALL VERSIONS) REPEAT BSA 21 [RaceOri3]

To which of these groups do you consider you belong?

- 1 Black of African origin
- 2 Black of Caribbean origin
- 3 Black of other origin (please say what)
- 4 Asian of Indian origin
- 5 Asian of Pakistani origin
- 6 Asian of Bangladeshi origin

- 7 Asian of Chinese origin
- 8 Asian of other origin (please say what)
- 9 White of any origin
- 10 Mixed origins (please say what)
- 11 Other (please say what)
- 98 SPONTANEOUS (Don't know)
- 99 SPONTANEOUS (Prefer not to answer)

ASK ALL (Versions 1-2, 7)

[F_BORN]

In which country was your father born?

Please type in:

[OPEN TEXT BOX]

ASK ALL (Versions 1-2, 7) [M_BORN]

And in which country was your mother born?

Please type in:

[OPEN TEXT BOX]

Disability

ASK ALL (ALL VERSIONS) REPEAT BSA 21

[DisNew3]

Do you have any physical or mental health conditions or illnesses lasting or expected to last 12 months or more?

- 1 Yes
- 2 No
- 8 SPONTANEOUS(Don't know)
- 9 SPONTANEOUS (Prefer not to answer)

IF 'Yes' AT [DisNew3] REPEAT BSA 21 [DisAct2] Does your condition or illness/do any of your conditions or illnesses reduce your ability to carry out day-to-day activities?

G_ReadOut_II1 "Read out instructions 1" _WEB: "" _TEL: "INTERVIEWER: READ OUT"

- 1 Yes, a lot
- 2 Yes, a little
- 3 Not at all
- 8 SPONTANEOUS (Don't know)
- 9 SPONATANEOUS (Prefer not to answer)

Education

ASK ALL (ALL VERSIONS) REPEAT BSA 21

[HEdQual2]

WEB: Starting from the top, please look down the list of qualifications and select the first one you come to that you have passed"

TEL: I will now read out a list of qualifications. Please say 'yes' when you hear one that you have passed"

INTERVIEWER: READ OUT AND SELECT FIRST QUALIFICATION RESPONDENT HAS PASSED. REFER TO HELP SCREENS IF NECESSARY.

G_ReadOut_II1 "Read out instructions 1" _WEB: "" _TEL: ""

- 1 Degree or equivalent, and above [HELP SMALL IN GREEN TEXT] for examples click here: University/CNNA first degree BA, BSC or foundation Degree, Postgraduate degree: MA, MSc, MPhil, DPhil, PhD.
- Other Higher Education, including Diplomas in higher education, HNC and HND [HELP SMALL IN GREEN TEXT] for other examples click here: Teaching qualifications for schools or further education, Nursing or other medical qualifications, City & Guilds level 4
- 3 A-levels/SCE Highers including vocational level 3 or equivalent, and above [HELP SMALL IN GREEN TEXT] for other examples click here: S-level, ASlevel, A2-Level Scottish higher, NVQ or SVQ level 3, International baccalaureate, Scottish Baccalaureate, Scottish SCE/SLC/SUPE at higher grade, Vocational A-level (AVCE), T Level, School Certificate or Matriculation, GNVQ Advanced or GSVQ level 3, City & Guilds Level 3

- 4 Qualifications below A-levels, such as GCSE/O Level/Standard Grade, vocational level 2 or equivalent [HELP SMALL IN GREEN TEXT] for other examples click here: GCE, GSE, CSE level 1, SQA National 1-3, SQA National 4, SQA National 5, SQA intermediate level 1-2, Scottish Standard or Ordinary, Scottish Access 1-3, Scottish Higher Leaving Certificate, SUPE ordinary, BTEC, SCOTVEC first, City & Guilds levels 1 or 2.
- 5 Other qualification (Please say what)
- 6 No qualifications
- 98 SPONTANEOUS (Don't know)
- 99 SPONTANEOUS (Prefer not to answer)

ASK IF hedqual2>1 (ALL VERSIONS) REPEAT BSA 21 [HhldEdu]

Has anyone in your household been educated to degree level (or equivalent) or above?

- 1 Yes
- 2 No
- 8 SPONTANEOUS (Don't know)
- 9 SPONTANEOUS (Prefer not to answer)

Benefits and income

ASK ALL (ALL VERSION) REPEAT BSA 21

[Anybn3]

WEB: Do you currently receive any of the **state** benefits or tax credits listed below? Please read through the full list before answering "yes" or "no".

TEL: I will now read out a list of state benefits or tax credits, can you please let me know if you currently receive any of these?

INTERVIEWER: READ OUT

G_ReadOut_II1 "Read out instructions 1" _WEB: "" _TEL: ""

State retirement pension (National Insurance)

Armed Forces Compensation Scheme (formally War Disablement Pension), including Guaranteed Income Payments or War Widow's / Widower's Pension (and any related allowances)

94

Bereavement Support Payment/ Widow's pension/ Widowed Parent's Allowance Jobseeker's Allowance (can include pensioner premium) Income Support (can include pensioner premium) Pension Credit Child Benefit / Guardian's Allowance Maternity Allowance Child Tax Credit Working Tax Credit Housing Benefit (Rent Rebate / Rent Allowance) Council Tax Reduction (or Council Tax Benefit/Rebate) Universal Credit Incapacity Benefit / Employment and Support Allowance (formerly Sickness Benefit / Invalidity Benefit) **Disability Living Allowance** Personal Independence Payment Attendance Allowance (for people aged 65+) Severe Disablement Allowance Carer's Allowance (formerly Invalid Care Allowance) Industrial Injury Disablement Benefit Free TV license for over 75s Winter fuel payments and Christmas bonus Other state benefit

- 1 Yes
- 2 No
- 8 SPONTANEOUS (Don't know)
- 9 SPONTANEOUS (Prefer not to answer)

ASK ALL (ALL VERSIONS) REPEAT BSA 21 [Maininc5]

Which of the following is the main source of income for you personally at present?

- 1 Earnings from employment
- 2 Occupational pension(s) from previous employer(s)
- 3 Private pension(s)
- 4 State retirement or widow's pension(s)
- 5 Incapacity benefitmars/Employment and Support Allowance/Disability Living Allowance or other disabled pension or benefit(s)
- 6 Personal Independence Payment
- 7 Universal Credit
- 8 Other state benefit or tax credit (Please say what)
- 9 Other main source (Please say what)

98 SPONTANEOUS (Don't know)

99 SPONTANEOUS (Prefer not to answer)

ASK ALL (ALL VERSIONS) REPEAT BSA 21

[Inctim1]

When thinking about your household income, do you usually think of this in weekly, monthly or annual amounts?

G_ReadOut_II1 "Read out instructions 1" _WEB: "" _TEL: "INTERVIEWER: READ OUT"

- 1 Weekly
- 2 Monthly
- 3 Annual
- 8 SPONTANEOUS (Don't know)
- 9 SPONTANEOUS (Prefer not to answer)

ASK ALL (ALL VERSIONS) REPEAT BSA 21

[HHincome]

Which of the following represents the total income of your **household** from **all** sources **before tax**? Please include income from benefits, savings etc.

G_ReadOut_II1 "Read out instructions 1" _WEB: ""

_TEL: "INTERVIEWER: READ OUT"

DISPLAY IF 'WEEKLY' AT [INCTIM]: Weekly income before tax

- 1 Less than £431
- 2 £431 £700
- 3 £701 £1,060
- 4 £1,061 or more
- 8 SPONTANEOUS (Don't know)
- 9 Prefer not to answer

DISPLAY IF 'MONTHLY] AT [INCTIM]: Monthly income before tax

- 1 Less than £1,861
- 2 £1,861 £3,020
- 3 £3,021 £4,600
- 4 £4,601 or more
- 8 SPONTANEOUS (Don't know)
- 9 Prefer not to answer

DISPLAY IF 'ANNUAL' AT [INCTIM]: Annual income before tax

- 1 Less than £22,351
- 2 £22,351 £36,240
- 3 £36,241 £55,160
- 4 £55,161 or more
- 8 SPONTANEOUS (Don't know)
- 9 Prefer not to answer

DISPLAY IF 'DON'T KNOW' OR 'PREFER NOT TO ANSWER' AT [INCTIM]

Which of the following represents the total income of your **household** from **all** sources **before tax**? Please include income from benefits, savings etc.

WEEKLY income BEFORE tax	MONTHLY income BEFORE tax	ANNUAL income BEFORE tax
1) Less than £431	Less than £1,861	Less than £22,351
2) £431 - £700	£1,861 - £3,020	£22,351 - £36,240
3) £701 - £1,060	£3,021 - £4,600	£36,241 - £55,160
4) £1,061 or more	£4,601 or more	£55,161 or more

8 SPONTANEOUS (Don't know)

9 Prefer not to answer

ASK ALL 'IN PAID WORK' OR 'ON MATERNITY OR PATERNITY LEAVE' AT [RECONFW] ALL VERSIONS) REPEAT BSA 21

[Inctim2]

When thinking about **your own earnings/>b/>**, do you usually think of this in weekly, monthly or annual amounts?

G_ReadOut_II1 "Read out instructions 1"

_WEB: ""

_TEL: "INTERVIEWER: READ OUT"

- 1 Weekly
- 2 Monthly
- 3 Annual
- 8 SPONTANEOUS (Don't know)
- 9 SPONTANEOUS (Prefer not to answer)

ASK ALL 'IN PAID WORK' OR 'ON MATERNITY OR PATERNITY LEAVE' AT [RECONFW] ALL VERSIONS) UPDATED BSA 2022

[REarn]

Which of the following represents your **own** gross or total **earnings**, before deduction of income tax and national insurance?

DISPLAY IF 'WEEKLY' AT [INCTIM2]:

Weekly earnings before tax

- 1 Less than £371
- 2 £371 £520
- 3 £521 £800
- 4 £801 or more
- 8 SPONTANEOUS (Don't know)
- 9 Prefer not to answer

DISPLAY IF 'MONTHLY' AT [INCTIM2]:

Monthly earnings before tax

- 1 Less than £1,621
- 2 £1,621 £2,270
- 3 £2,271 £3,450
- 4 £3,451 or more
- 8 SPONTANEOUS (Don't know)
- 9 Prefer not to answer

DISPLAY IF 'ANNUAL' AT [INCTIM2]: Annual earnings before tax

- 1 Less than £19,401
- 2 £19,401 £27,200
- 3 £27,201 £41,400
- 4 £41,401 or more
- 8 SPONTANEOUS (Don't know)
- 9 Prefer not to answer

DISPLAY IF 'DON'T KNOW' OR 'PREFER NOT TO ANSWER' AT [INCTIM2]:

WEEKLY income BEFORE tax	MONTHLY income BEFORE tax	ANNUAL income BEFORE tax
1) Less than £371	Less than £1,621	Less than £19,401
2) £371 - £520	£1,621 - £2,270	£19,401 - £27,200
3) £521 - £800	£2,271 - £3,450	£27,201 - £41,400
4) £801 or more	£3,451 or more	£41,401 or more

8 SPONTANEOUS (Don't know)

9 Prefer not to answer

ASK ALL (ALL VERSIONS) REPEAT 2020

[Hincdif4]

Which of the following statements is the closest to your feelings about your household's income these days?

- 1 Living really comfortably on present income
- 2 Living comfortably on present income
- 3 Neither comfortable nor struggling on present income
- 4 Struggling on present income
- 5 Really struggling on present income
- 6 (Other answer (WRITE IN))
- 8 (Don't know)
- 9 (Refusal)

Incentive

{ASK ALL} (ALL VERSIONS) VchType

Thank you for contributing to this important piece of research.

We would like to send you a shopping voucher to say thank you for your time. You can choose between an e-voucher sent by email or a physical voucher sent in the post.

Here are some reasons why you might want to consider the e-voucher option:

- An e-voucher will arrive more quickly than a physical voucher.
- You can choose from a wide range of digital e-gift cards for shopping online or physical gift cards for use in-store.
- Using e-vouchers instead of physical ones will help contribute to lower global emissions, plastic waste and pollution.

How would you like to receive your voucher, or would you prefer to not receive one at all?

G_ReadOut_II1 "Read out instructions 1" _WEB: "" _TEL: "INTERVIEWER: READ OUT"

- 1 An e-voucher, sent in an email
- 2 A physical voucher, sent by post
- 3 {IF TEL: "SPONTANEOUS"} I do not want to receive a voucher

{No Hidden prefer not to say or Don't know}

ASK IF VchType=1 (ALL VERSIONS) [Email1]

Thank you. {IF WEB: Please enter your email address below,} {IF TEL: Please can you tell me your email address}, so we can send you details of your voucher.

OPEN

HARDCHECK: If answer provided does not include @ or full-stop: "Please check and amend. E-mail addresses should contain an @ character and a full stop."

ASK IF Vchtype=1 (ALL VERSIONS) [Email2]

INTERVIEWER: READ EMAIL ADDRESS BACK TO PARTICIPANT AND CONFIRM

"Please confirm your correct email address"

OPEN

HARDCHECK: IF Email2 <> Email1: "The two email addresses you have entered are not the same. Please check and amend"

100

ASK IF Vchtype=2 (ALL VERSIONS) [ADDVch]

NOTE TO PROGRAMMER: AUTOFILL THIS FROM SAMPLE INFORMATION.

To make sure your shopping voucher goes to the correct address, please could you confirm that your current address is...?

{AddressLine1} {AddressLine2} {AddressLine3} {AddressLine4} {AddressLine5} {Postcode}"

1. Yes – this address is correct

2. No – this address needs updating

ASK IF ADDVch =2 or DK/REF (ALL VERSIONS) [ADDVCH2]

{IF AddVch = 2: "{IF WEB: "Please enter"}{IF TEL: "Could I take"} your correct address details" {IF TEL: "?"}}

INTERVIEWER: ONCE ENTERED, PLEASE READ BACK TO RESPONDENT

DISPLAY

{IF AddVch =2} or DK/REF [AddVCH_AddressLine1] "First line:" OPEN DK/REF NOT ALLOWED

{IF AddVch =2} or DK/REF [AddVCH_AddressLine2] "Second line:" OPEN ALLOW NA

{IF AddVch =2} or DK/REF [AddVCH_AddressLine3] "Third line:" OPEN ALLOW NA

{IF AddVch =2} or DK/REF [AddVCH_AddressLine4] "Town:" OPEN DK/REF NOT ALLOWED

{IF AddVch =2} or DK/REF

[AddVCH_AddressLine5] "County:" OPEN ALLOW NA

{IF AddVch =2} or DK/REF [AddVCH_Postcode] "Post Code:" OPEN DK/REF NOT ALLOWED

{ASK IF Vchtype=1 OR 2} (ALL VERSIONS) [NameVch2]

Please enter your name, so the voucher can be addressed to the correct person {IF TEL: INTERVIEWER: READ NAME BACK TO PARTICIPANT AND CONFIRM}

Title [free entry] NA allowed

First name [free entry] DK/REF not allowed

Surname [free entry] DK/REF not allowed

1) {IF WEB: "I do"}{IF TEL: "Respondent does"} not wish to give {IF WEB: "my"/IF TEL: "their"} name

SOFTCHECK: IF Firstname or Surname is only 1 character: "The first name you have provided is only one character long. Are you sure this is correct?"

HARDCHECK: IF Firstname or Surname contains numbers: "Please check and amend. First names should not contain numbers"

Recruitment

ASK ALL (ALL VERSIONS) [ConsPan3e]

We would like to contact you again in the future to invite you to take part in **short surveys** every couple of months or so.

By doing so you can continue to represent the opinions and experiences of people like you on important issues that affect us all

These short surveys will typically...

- be available to complete online or over the phone
- last around 15 minutes
- include a £5 voucher to thank you for your time
- be every couple of months or so

Would it be okay for us to contact you as part of this research? You can decide at the time whether or not to take part.

- 1 Yes I would like to be given the option to take part in the future
- 2 No I would not like to be invited to take part
- 3 I'm not sure I would like more information

{ASK IF ConsPan3e = 3,DK } (ALL VERSIONS) ConsPan3Info

{WEB: "Please click on the links below for some more information about the study."; TEL: "Do you have any questions about this research I can help with?}

[HELP SMALL IN GREEN TEXT]: Why is it important I take part? This study will collect information on the experiences and opinions of thousands of people across Britain. This will be used by government, charities and academics to help them make the right decisions.

It is vital that we get the views of people from all different parts of the country, from different backgrounds, and in different circumstances. That is why it is important that you take part – by giving your perspective you will help to make sure the views and experiences of people like you are represented.

[HELP SMALL IN GREEN TEXT]: What will taking part involve? You will be invited to take part in short questionnaires lasting around 15 minutes every couple of months or so. We will ask you questions on a range of topics, from housing and education, to health and happiness, or government policy and the environment.

[HELP SMALL IN GREEN TEXT]: Do I have to take part in every survey? Taking part is your choice. If you would rather not take part in one of our surveys, you can ignore our messages or let us know. If you want to stop taking part you can simply let us know and we will update your records.

[HELP SMALL IN GREEN TEXT]: Will I receive a voucher for taking part? Each invitation will explain what you will receive for taking part. You will receive a shopping voucher as a thank you for taking part in most questionnaires.

[HELP SMALL IN GREEN TEXT]: What will you do with the information I give? As with BSA, the information you give will be used for research purposes only and held securely in accordance with current data protection legislation. Most of the results will appear as statistics and we will not identify your individual opinion without seeking your permission. Sometimes we will analyse your answers together with answers you gave to previous questionnaires to help us to understand things like how people's views are changing over time.

Would it be okay for us to contact you as part of this research?

1 Yes – I would like to be given the option to take part in the future

- 2 No I would not like to be invited to take part
- 3 I'm still not sure

{ASK IF ConsPan3Info = 3} (ALL VERSIONS) [ConsPan3Unsure]

That's okay. We will send you some more information about the study to help you make a decision.

If you then decide you don't want to take part you can let us know and we won't contact you again.

ASK ALL (ALL VERSIONS) [ComeBac5]

From time to time we also do one-off follow-up studies and may wish to contact you again about these. We would generally be able to give you a voucher to thank you for your time. You can always decide at the time whether or not you want to take part.

Would it be okay for us to contact you about other future studies?

- 1 Yes
- 2 No
- 8 (Don't know)
- 9 (Refusal)

Contact details

ASK IF VchType=3 and ConsPan3e = 1 or (ConsPan3info =1 or 3) or ComeBac5=1 (ALL VERSIONS)

[Name]

"It is important that we have the correct details for you so that we can keep in touch. Please be assured that your details will only be used for the purpose of contacting you in relation to our research, and will not be shared with anybody outside of our research team

Can you please provide us with your name, so we know who to contact for future research?

Title [free entry] NA allowed

First name [free entry] DK/REF NOT ALLOWED Commented [AC1]: The ethics committee has asked us to make it clearer that participants will be included unless they opt out. I suggest adding in the sentence "By receiving this information, you will be added to our list to receive invitations to future surveys." after the first one. Surname [free entry] DK/REF NOT ALLOWED

1) {IF WEB: "I do"}{IF TEL: "Respondent does"} not wish to give {IF WEB: "my"/IF TEL: "their"} name

SOFTCHECK: IF Firstname or Surname is only 1 character: "The first name you have provided is only one character long. Are you sure this is correct?"

HARDCHECK: IF Firstname or Surname contains numbers: "Please check and amend. First names should not contain numbers"

ASK IF VchType=1 or 2 and ConsPan3e = 1 or (ConsPan3info =1 or 3) or ComeBac5=1 (ALL VERSIONS) [NameChk]

It is important that we have the correct details for you so that we can keep in touch. Please be assured that your details will only be used for the purpose of contacting you in relation to our research, and will not be shared with anybody outside of our research team

Could you please confirm that your name is: {TEXTFILL BELOW FROM NameVch2} {Title} {First name} {Surname}

Is this correct?

- Yes this name is correct 1
- 2 No - this name needs updating

{ASK IF NameChk =2 or DK/REF} (ALL VERSIONS)

[NameUpd]

"{IF WEB: "Please enter"}{IF TEL: "Could I take"} your correct name details" {IF TEL: "?"}

DISPLAY

{IF NameChk =2 or DK/REF } [NameUpd_Title] "Title:" OPEN NA allowed

{IF NameChk =2 or DK/REF } [NameUpd_First name] "First name:" OPEN

DK/REF NOT ALLOWED

{IF NameChk =2 or DK/REF } [NameUpd_Surname] "Surname:' OPEN **DK/REF NOT ALLOWED**

ASK IF VchType=2 or 3 and ConsPan3e = 1 or (ConsPan3info =1 or 3) or Comebac5=1 (ALL VERSIONS) [ConsEmail]

We also use email to contact people. Do you have an email address we can contact you on?

Your email address will only be used to contact you as part of this research.

You can always opt out of getting emails in the future, if you no longer wish to be contacted in that way.

Please enter your email below

OPEN FREETEXT

- 1
- {IF WEB: "I do"}{IF TEL: "Respondent does"} not have an email address {IF WEB: "I do"}{IF TEL: "Respondent does"} not wish to give {IF WEB: "my"/IF 2 TEL: "their"}e-mail address

SOFTCHECK: IF CONSEMAIL = 2 "Providing your email address will let allow us to send you information quickly and save on paper. Please make sure you do not wish to give your email address before proceeding.

HARDCHECK: If answer provided does not include @ or full-stop: "Please check and amend. E-mail addresses should contain an @ character and a full stop."

ASK (consEmail not 1 or 2 or -1) (ALL VERSIONS) [ConsEmail2]

If Tel: INTERVIEWER: READ EMAIL ADDRESS BACK TO PARTICIPANT AND CONFIRM

"Please confirm your correct email address"

OPEN FREE TEXT

HARDCHECK: IF consEmail2 <> consEmail: "The two email addresses you have entered are not the same. Please check and amend"

ASK IF VchType=1 and ConsPan3e = 1 or (ConsPan3info =1 or 3) or Comebac5=1 (ALL VERSIONS)

EmailChk

Can we check we have your correct email address details, so we can inform you of future research?

Could you please confirm that your current email address is:

{TEXTFILL: Email1}

Is this correct?

1 Yes – this email address is correct

2 No - this email address needs updating

{EmailChk =2 or DK/REF} [EmailUpd]

{IF EmailChk = 2: "{IF WEB: "Please enter"}{IF TEL: "Could I take"} your correct email address" {IF TEL: "?"}}

DISPLAY

{IF EmailChk =2 or DK/REF } [EmailUpd1] "Email:" OPEN DK/REF NOT ALLOWED

ASK IF EmailChk =2 or DK/REF (ALL VERSIONS) [EmailUpd2]

INTERVIEWER: READ EMAIL ADDRESS BACK TO PARTICIPANT AND CONFIRM

"Please confirm your correct email address"

OPEN FREE TEXT

HARDCHECK: IF EmailUpd1 <> EmailUpd2: "The two email addresses you have entered are not the same. Please check and amend"

ASK IF ConsPan3e = 1 or (ConsPan3info =1 or 3) or Comebac5=1 (ALL VERSIONS) [ConsMob]

Do you have a mobile number we could contact you on? Your phone number will **only** be used to contact you as part of this research.

You can always opt out of getting calls or texts in the future, if you no longer wish to be contacted in that way.

107

OPEN

- 1
- {IF WEB: "I do"}{IF TEL: "Respondent does"} not have a mobile phone number {IF WEB: "I do"}{IF TEL: "Respondent does"} not wish to give {IF WEB: "my"/IF 2 TEL: "their"} mobile phone number

SOFTCHECK: IF CONSMOB = 2 "Although we'll normally contact you by letter or email, some studies can only be done on the phone. Please make sure you do not wish to give your mobile phone number before proceeding."

HARDCHECK: If contains characters other than numbers "Please only use numbers without any additional characters or spaces."

HARDCHECK: If does not contain 10 or 11 digits or does not start with a 0. "Your answer is not a valid telephone number. UK phone numbers start with 0 and are 10 or 11 digits. Please check and amend.

ASK IF ConsPan3e = 1 or (ConsPan3info =1 or 3) or Comebac5=1 (ALL VERSIONS) [ConsOthn]

And do you have another phone number we could contact you on? Again, this will only be used to contact you as part of this research.

- 1 Yes
- 2 No

IF ConsOthn =1 (ALL VERSIONS) [ConsTeln]

{IF WEB: "Please enter"}{IF TEL: "Could I take"} your other phone number {IF TEL: "?"}}

OPEN

- {IF WEB: "I do"}{IF TEL: "Respondent does"} not have another phone number 1
- {IF WEB: "I do"}{IF TEL: "Respondent does"} not wish to give {IF WEB: "my"/IF 2 TEL: "their"} other phone number

HARDCHECK: If contains characters other than numbers "Please only use numbers without any additional characters or spaces."

HARDCHECK: If does not contain 10 or 11 digits or does not start with a 0. "Your answer is not a valid telephone number. UK phone numbers start with 0 and are 10 or 11 digits. Please check and amend."

ASK IF VchType=1, 2 or 3 and ConsPan3e = 1 or (ConsPan3info =1 or 3) or Comebac5=1 (ALL VERSIONS) [AddrChk]

Finally, can we check we have your correct address details, so we can inform you of future research?

Could you please confirm that your current address is?

{AddressLine1} {AddressLine2} {AddressLine3} {AddressLine4} {AddressLine5} {Postcode}"

Is this correct?

- 1 Yes this address is correct
- 2 No this address needs updating

{AddrChk =2 or DK/REF} (ALL VERSIONS) [AddrUpd]

"{IF WEB: "Please enter"}{IF TEL: "Could I take"} your correct address details" {IF TEL: "?"}}

INTERVIEWER: ONCE ENTERED, PLEASE READ BACK TO RESPONDENT

DISPLAY

{IF AddrChk =2 or DK/REF }
[AddrUpd_AddressLine1]
"First line:"
OPEN
DK/REF NOT ALLOWED

{IF AddrChk =2 or DK/REF } [AddrUpd_AddressLine2] "Second line:" OPEN ALLOW NA

{IF AddrChk =2 or DK/REF } [AddrUpd_AddressLine3] "Third line:" OPEN ALLOW NA

{IF AddrChk =2 or DK/REF } [AddrUpd_AddressLine4] "Town:" OPEN DK/REF NOT ALLOWED

{IF AddrChk =2 or DK/REF } [AddrUpd_AddressLine5] "County:" OPEN ALLOW NA {IF AddrChk =2 or DK/REF } [AddrUpd_Postcode] "Post Code:" OPEN

Closing statement – ALL VERSIONS

IF MODE = WEB (ALL VERSIONS) [ClosePageWeb]

We have now completed the questionnaire. Thank you very much for taking the time to share your opinions with us. It is much appreciated.

IF Vchtype = 2: As a token of our appreciation, we will send you a shopping voucher which will arrive in the next few weeks in the post.

IF Vchtype = 1: As a token of our appreciation, we will send you a shopping voucher which will arrive in the next few weeks through an email from BSA, be sure to check your spam folder.

If you would like more information or support about the topics raised in the questionnaire you can find a list of useful organisations here: bsa.natcen.ac.uk/taking-part

If you have any further information you'd like to add, please include it in the box below. Otherwise, please click 'Next' to submit your answers.

OPEN text ALLOW NA

PAGE START

{IF MODE = TEL} (ALL VERSIONS) [ClosePageTel]

"Thank you very much for taking the time to share your opinions with us. It is much appreciated.

{IF Vchtype = 2: "As a token of our appreciation, we will send you a shopping voucher which will arrive in the next few weeks in the post".}

{IF Vchtype = 1: "As a token of our appreciation, we will send you a shopping voucher which will arrive in the next few weeks through an email from BSA, be sure to check your spam folder. "}

If you would like more information or support about the topics raised in the questionnaire you can find a list of useful organisations by visiting : bsa.natcen.ac.uk/taking-part

Do you have any further information you would like to add?"

OPEN ALLOW NA